

Literature Cited

- Agee, J.A. 2007.** The role of silviculture in restoring fire-adapted ecosystems. Keynote address in Restoring fire-adapted ecosystems: proceedings of the 2005 National Silviculture Workshop. Gen. Tech. Rep. PSW-GTR-203. Albany, CA: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service. ix-xvii.
http://www.fs.fed.us/psw/publications/documents/psw_gtr203/psw_gtr203_002ageek_eynote.pdf. (Accessed August 1, 2008).
- Agee, J.K., Skinner, C.N. 2005.** Basic principles of forest fuel reduction treatments. *Forest Ecology and Management*. 211: 83-96.
<http://www.sciencedirect.com/science?ob=ArticleURL&udi=B6T6X-4FN4VT1-2&user=4250274&rdoc=1&fmt=&orig=search&sort=d&view=c&acct=C000052423&version=1&urlVersion=0&userid=4250274&md5=9dcccdf4528dff8b6f0d1caec2caed>.
- Andrews, K.M.; Gibbons, J.W. 2005.** How do highways influence snake movement? Behavioral responses to roads and vehicles. *Copeia*. 4: 772-782.
<http://www.uga.edu/srel/Reprint/2906.htm>. (Accessed October 27, 2007).
- Andrusak, H. 1980.** Kootenai River white sturgeon. Unpublished report on file at: Ministry of Environment and Parks, Fish and Wildlife Branch, Nelson, British Columbia, Canada.
- Anthony, R.G.; Isaacs, F.B.. 1989.** Characteristics of bald eagle nest sites in Oregon. *Journal of Wildlife Management*. 53: 148-159.
<http://www.jstor.org/view/0022541x/ap070206/07a00290/0>. (Accessed October 27, 2007).
- Arno, S.F.; Hoff, R.J. 1990.** Whitebark pine. In *Silvics of North America: 1. Conifers*. Agriculture Handbook 654. Washington, DC: U. S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service. Vol. 1: 268-279.
http://www.na.fs.fed.us/spfo/pubs/silvics_manual/Volume_1/pinus/albicaulis.htm. (Accessed July 30, 2008).
- Apperson, K.A. 1992.** Kootenai River white sturgeon investigations and experimental culture. Annual progress report FY1991. Contract DE-A179-88BP93497. Idaho Department of Fish and Game report to Bonneville Power Administration. Portland, OR: Bonneville Power Administration.
- Apperson, K.A. and P.J. Anders. 1990.** [Kootenai River white sturgeon investigations and experimental culture. Idaho Department of Fish and Game. Annual Progress Report. Project 88-65, Bonneville Power Administration, Portland, Oregon.](#)
- Apperson, K.A.; Anders, P.J. 1991.** Kootenai River white sturgeon investigations and experimental culture. Annual progress report FY1990. Contract DE-A179-88BP93497. Idaho Department of Fish and Game report to Bonneville Power Administration. Portland, OR: Bonneville Power Administration.
- Arrow, K.; Fisher, A. 1974.** Environmental preservation, uncertainty, and irreversibility. *Quarterly Journal of Economics*. 312-319.
- Ash, A.N. 1997.** Disappearance and return of plethodontid salamanders to clearcut plots in the southern Blue Ridge Mountains. *Conservation Biology*. 11: 983-989.
<http://www.blackwell-synergy.com/doi/pdf/10.1046/j.1523-1739.1997.96172.x?cookieSet=1>. (Accessed October 27, 2007).
- Ashton, P.G.; Pickens, J.B.. 1995.** Employment diversity and economic performance in small, resource-dependent communities near western national forests. *Society and Natural Resources*. 8: 231-241.
- Baker, M.D.; Lacki, M.J.. 1997.** Short-term changes in bird communities in response to silvicultural prescriptions. *Forest Ecology and Management*. 96: 27-36.
<http://www.sciencedirect.com/>. (Accessed October 27, 2007).
- Barrett, S.W. 1994 (August 21).** It's too late for fire alone to work. *The Missoulian* [newspaper]. Missoula, MT.

- Batt, P.E. 1996.** State of Idaho bull trout conservation plan. Boise, ID: Office of the Governor.
<http://species.idaho.gov/pdf/bulltroutconservationplan-96.pdf>. (Accessed October 27, 2007).
- Baumgartner, D.M.; Mitchell, R., eds. 1984.** Silvicultural management strategies for pests of the interior Douglas-fir and grand fir forest types. Pullman, WA: Washington State University. 199 p.
- Beale, C.L.; Johnson, K.M.. 1998.** The identification of recreational counties in nonmetropolitan areas of the U.S.A. Population Research and Policy Review. 17: 37-53.
<http://www.springerlink.com/content/g36223516p7n4776/fulltext.pdf>. (Accessed October 27, 2007).
- Behnke, R.J. 2002.** Trout and salmon of North America. 1st edition. New York: Free Press, Chanticleer Press. 384 p. [pp. 81-86, 163-173, 181-188.](#)
- Bengston, D.N.; Xu, Z. 1995.** Changing national forest values: a content analysis. Research Paper NC-323. St. Paul, MN: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, North Central Research Station.
<http://www.treearch.fs.fed.us/pubs/10806>. (Accessed November 2, 2007).
- Berger, L.; Speare, R.; Daszak, P.; Green, D.E.; Cunningham, A.A.; Goggin, C.L.; Slocombe, R.; Ragan, M.A.; Hyatt, A.D.; McDonald, K.R.; Hines, H.B.; Lips, K.R.; Marantelli, G.; Parkes, H. 1998.** Chytridiomycosis causes amphibian mortality associated with population declines in the rain forests of Australia and Central America. Proceedings of the National Academy of Sciences. 95: 9031-9036.
- Beschta, R.L.; Bilby, R.E.; Brown, G.W.; Holtby, L.B.; Hofstra, T.D.. 1987.** Stream temperature and aquatic habitat: fisheries and forestry interactions. In: Salo, E.O.; T.W. Cundy, eds. Streamside management: forestry and fishery interactions. Contribution No. 57. Seattle, WA: University of Washington, Institute of Forest Resources: 191-232.
- Besser, J.M.; Rabeni, C.F. 1987.** Bioavailability and toxicity of metals leached from lead-mine tailings to aquatic invertebrates. Environmental Toxicology and Chemistry. 6: 879-890.
- Birdsey, R.; Pregitzer, K.; Lucier, A.. 2006.** Forest carbon management in the United States: 1600-2100. Journal of Environmental Quality. 35: 1461-1469.
http://www.fs.fed.us/ne/newtown_square/publications/other_publishers/ne_2006_birdsey002p.pdf. (Accessed October 27, 2007).
- Bjornn, T.C.; Craddock, D. R.; Corley, D. R. 1968.** Migration and survival of Redfish Lake, Idaho, sockeye salmon, *Oncorhynchus nerka*. Trans. Am. Fish. Soc. 97: 360-373.
- Black, J.H. 1970.** Some aspects of the distribution, natural history, and zoogeography of the toad genus *Bufo* in Montana. Master of Science thesis Missoula, Mt: University of Montana. 70 p.
- Boardman, A.E.; D.H. Greenberg; A. Vining; D.L. Weimer. 1996.** Cost-benefit analysis: concepts and practice. Upper Saddle River, NJ: Prentice Hall. p. 12
- Brown, C.J.D. 1971.** Fishes of Montana. Bozeman, MT: Big Sky Books. p. 27-32.
- Brown, J. 1991.** Should management ignitions be used in Yellowstone National Park? In: Keiter, R.B.; Boyce, M.S., eds. The Greater Yellowstone Ecosystem: redefining America's wilderness heritage New Haven, CT: Yale University Press. 428 p.
- Brown, G.; Reed, P.. 2000.** Validation of a forest values typology for use in national forest planning. Forest Science. 46(2): 240-247.
- Brunson, R.B. 1952.** Recent collections of *Bufo boreas boreas* from western Montana. Proc. Montana Acad. Sci. 11: 17-19.
- Buck, Brian W. and Jones, Jeffrey L.. 2007** Interagency/Industry Coordination to Respond to Selenium Contamination at Phosphate Mines in Southeastern Idaho.
<http://www.fs.fed.us/geology/buck-jones.pdf>.

- Bureau of Community and Environmental Health Division of Health.** 2006. Idaho Department of Health and Welfare, Southeast Idaho Phosphate Mining Resource Area Bannock, Bear Lake, Bingham, and Caribou Counties, Idaho EPA Facility ID: IDN001002245, February 24, 2006.
- Burroughs, E.R.; King, J.G.** 1989. Reduction of soil erosion on forest roads. Gen. Tech. Report GTR INT-264. Ogden, UT: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Intermountain Research Station.
http://forest.moscowfsl.wsu.edu/smp/solo/documents/GTRs/INT_264/INT-264_ReducSoilEro_1989.pdf. (Accessed October 27, 2007).
- Campbell, J.B.** 1970. Hibernacula of a population of *Bufo boreas boreas* in the Colorado Front Range. *Herpetologica*. 26: 278–282.
- Cane, J.H.** 2001. Habitat fragmentation and native bees: a premature verdict? *Conservation Ecology*. 5(1): 3.
<http://www.consecol.org/vol5/iss1/art3/>. (Accessed October 27, 2007).
- Carpenter, C.C.** 1953. An ecological survey of the herpetofauna of the Grand Teton–Jackson Hole area of Wyoming. *Copeia*. 1953: 170–174.
- Carey, C.** 1993. Hypothesis concerning the causes of the disappearance of boreal toads from the mountains of Colorado. *Conservation Biology*. 7: 355–362.
- Carey, C.** 2000. Infectious disease and worldwide declines of amphibian populations, with comments on emerging diseases in coral reef organisms and in humans. *Environmental Health Perspectives*. 108 (Supplement 1): 143–150.
- Cavallo, B.J.** 1997. Floodplain habitat heterogeneity and the distribution, abundance, and behavior of fishes and amphibians in the Middle Fork Flathead River Basin, Montana. Master of Science thesis, Missoula, MT: University of Montana. 133 p.
- Central Idaho Economic Development and Recreation Act [CIEDRA].** 2007. 110th Congress, 1st Session, H.R. 222. Introduced by Idaho's 2nd District Congressman, Mike Simpson, January 4, 2007.
http://www.house.gov/simpson/pdf/110th_HR222.pdf. (Accessed October 27, 2007).
- Chamberlin, S.** 2007 (May 29). [Personal communication]. GIS and State Forestry division, Department of Commerce, National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration, National Marine Fisheries Service, Boise, Idaho.
- Chamberlin, T.W.; Harr, R.D.; Everest, F.H.** 1991. Timber harvesting, silviculture, and watershed processes. In: Meehan, W.R., ed., *Influences of forest and rangeland management on salmonid fishes and their habitats*. Special Publication 19. Bethesda, MD: American Fisheries Society: 181–205.
<http://www.jstor.org/view/00458511/ap050425/05a00470/0>. (Accessed October 27, 2007).
- Chen, J.; Franklin, J.F.; Spies, T.A.** 1995. Growing-season microclimatic gradients from clearcut edges into old-growth Douglas-fir forest. *Ecological Applications*. 5(1): 74–86.
<http://www.jstor.org/view/10510761/di960387/96p00142/0>. (Accessed October 27, 2007).
- Cochnauer T.; Claire, C.** 2003. Evaluate status of pacific lamprey in the Clearwater River drainage, Idaho. Annual report, project no. 200002800; BPA Report DOE/BP-00004039-4). Available from: Bonneville Power Administration, PO Box 3621, Portland, OR 97208-3621. 51 p.
- Coghan, G.; Sowa, R.** 1998. National forest road system and use. Unpublished draft report on file at: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, engineering staff. Washington Office, Washington, DC.
http://www.fs.fed.us/eng/road_mgt/roads_ummary.pdf. (Accessed October 27, 2007).

- Cole, E.K.; Pop, e M.D.; Anthony, R.G. 2004.** Influence of road management on diurnal habitat use of Roosevelt elk. *Northwest Science*. 78(4): 313–321.
<http://www.jstor.org/view/0022541x/ap070241/07a00160/0>. (Accessed October 26, 2007).
- Cordell, H. K. 1999.** Outdoor recreation in American life: a national assessment of demand and supply trends. Champaign, IL: Sagamore Publishing. Pages 39–182 and 323–350.
- Cordell, H.K.; Tarrant, M.A.; McDonald, B.L.; Bergstrom, J.C.. 1999a.** How the public views wilderness: more results from the USA survey on recreation and the environment. *International Journal of Wilderness*. 4(3): 28–31.
http://www.srs.fs.usda.gov/pubs/ja/ja_cordell001.pdf (Accessed July 25, 2008).
- Cordell, H.K.; McDonald, B.L.; Teasley, R.J.; Bergstrom, J.C.; Martin, J.; Bason, J.; Leeworthy, V.R. 1999b.** Outdoor recreation participation trends. In: Cordell, H.K., principal investigator. *Outdoor recreation in american life: a national assessment of demand and supply trend*. Champaign, IL: Sagamore Press: 219–322.
http://www.srs.fs.usda.gov/pubs/ja/ja_cordell010.pdf (Accessed July 25, 2008).
- Cundick J. 2007.** [Personal communication]. Minerals branch chief, Pocatello Field Office, U.S. Department of the Interior, Bureau of Land Management.
- Curley, K; Mace, S.; Stouder, S. 2004.** Where the wild lands are: Idaho. Arlington, VA: Trout Unlimited. 28 p.
http://www.tu.org/atf/cf/%7b0D18ECB7-7347-445B-A38E-65B282BBBD8A%7d/Roadless_Idaho.pdf. (Accessed October 26, 2007).
- Cypher, E. 2005.** [Corridor effects on the endangered plant kern mallow and its habitat](#). Unpublished report, prepared for the California Energy Commission, Public Interest Energy Research Program (PIER). CEC-500-2005-063.
<http://www.energy.ca.gov/2005publications/CEC-500-2005-063/CEC-500-2005-063.PDF>. (Accessed October 27, 2007).
- Daley, R.J.; Carmach, E.C.; Gray, C C.B.J.; Pharo, H.; Jasper, S.; Wiegand, R.C.. 1981.** The effects of upstream impoundments on the limnology of Kootenay Lake, British Columbia. National Water Research Institute, Inland Waters Directorate, scientific service report. no. 117. Available at: National Water Research Institute, Environment Canada, 867 Lakeshore Road, P.O. Box 5050, Burlington, ON L7R 4A6 96 p.
- Daszak, P., L. Berger, A.A. Cunningham, A.D. Hyatt, D.E. Green and R. Speare. 1999.** Emerging infectious diseases and amphibian population declines. *Emerging Infectious Diseases* 5:735–748.
- Daszak, P.; Cunningham, A. A.; Hyatt, A. D.. 2000.** Emerging infectious diseases of wildlife: threats to biodiversity and human health. *Science*. 287: 443–449.
- Davies-Colley, R.J. 1992.** Yellow substance in coastal marine waters round the South Island New Zealand. *New Zealand Journal of Marine and Freshwater Research*. 26: 311–322.
<http://www.rsnz.org/publish/nzjmfr/1992/30.php>. (Accessed October 26, 2007).
- Davis, L.S.; Cooper, R.W.. 1963.** How prescribed burning affects wildfire occurrence. *Journal of Forestry*. 61: 915–917.
- DeBano, L.F.; Neary, D.G.; Foliott, P.F.. 1998.** Fire's effect on ecosystems. New York: John Wiley and Sons. 333 p.
- Deeming, J.E. 1990.** Effects of prescribed fire on wildfire occurrence and severity. In: Walstand, J.D. [et al.], eds. *Natural and prescribed fire in Pacific Northwest forests*. Corvallis, OR: Oregon State University Press: 95–104.
- deMaynadier, P.G.; Hunter, M.L., Jr. 1998.** Effects of silvicultural edges on the distribution and abundance of amphibians in Maine. *Conservation Biology*. 12: 340–352.
<http://www.blackwell-synergy.com/doi/pdf/10.1046/j.1523-1739.1998.96412.x>. (Accessed October 26, 2007).

- deMaynadier, P.G.; Hunter, M.L., Jr. 1999.** Forest canopy closure and juvenile emigration by pool-breeding amphibians in Maine. *Journal of Wildlife Management*. 63: 441-450.
- Dobbs, M.G.; Cherry, D.S.; Cairns, J., Jr. 1996.** Toxicity and bioaccumulation of selenium to a three-trophic level food chain. *Environmental Toxicology and Chemistry*. 15: 340-347.
- Driver, B.L.; Brown, P.J.; Peterson, G.L. 1991.** Benefits of leisure. State College, PA: Venture Publishing.
- Duff, D.A. 1988.** Bonneville cutthroat trout current status and management. In: Status and management of interior stocks of cutthroat trout. American Fisheries Society Symposium 4 [R.E. Gresswell ed.]. 4:121-127.
- Everest F.H.; Beschta, R. L.; Scrivener, J.C.; Koski, K.V.; Sedell, J.R.; Cederholm, C.J. 1987.** Fine sediment and salmonid production: a paradox. In E. O. Salo; T. W. Cundy, eds. Proceedings of the symposium streamside management: forestry and fishery interactions. Seattle, WA: University of Washington, Institute of Forest Resources: 98-142.
- Feeney, S.R.; Kolb, T.E.; Covington, W.W.; Wagner, M.R.. 2000.** Influence of thinning and burning restoration treatments on presettlement ponderosa pines at the Gus Pearson Natural Area. *Canadian Journal of Forestry Res.* 28: 1295-1306. <http://article.pubs.nrc-cnrc.gc.ca/ppv/RPViewDoc?handler=HandleInitialGet&journal=cjfr&volume=28&> (Accessed July 30, 2008).
- Fenn, M.E. 2006.** The effects of nitrogen distribution, ambient ozone, and climate change on forests in the Western U.S. Proc. September 20-24, 2004, Denver, CO. RMRS-P-42CD. U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Rocky Mountain Research Station. 8 p. http://www.fs.fed.us/rm/pubs/rmrs_p042/rmrs_p042_002_008.pdf. (Accessed October 26, 2007).
- Fertig, W.; Black, R.; Wolken, P.. 2005.** Rangeland status review of ute ladies'-tresses (*Spiranthes diluvialis*). Unpublished report prepared for the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service and Central Utah Water Conservancy District. http://www.fws.gov/mountain-prairie/species/plants/uteladiestress/SPDI_Status%20review_Fertig2005.pdf. (Accessed July 30, 2008).
- Fettig, C.J.; Klepzig, K.D.; Billings, R.F.; Munson, A.S.; Nebeker, T.E.; Negron, J.F.; Nowak, J.T. 2007.** The effectiveness of vegetation management practices for prevention and control of bark beetle infestations in coniferous forests of the western and southern United States. *Forest Ecology and Management*. 238: 24-53. http://www.srs.fs.usda.gov/pubs/ja/ja_fettig002.pdf. (August 1, 2008).
- Finney, M.A. 2000.** Spatial patterns of fuel treatments and some effects of fire growth and behavior. In: Neuenschwander, L. F.; K. C Ryan, tech. eds. Proceedings from the joint fire science conference and workshop: crossing the millennium – integrating spatial technologies and ecological principles for a new age in fire management: 127-137. <http://jfsp.nifc.gov/conferenceproc/T-02Finney.pdf>. (Accessed October 26, 2007).
- Finney, M.A. 2005.** The challenge of quantitative risk analysis for wildland fire. *Forest Ecology and Management* 211(2005): 97-108. http://www.sciencedirect.com/science?_ob=ArticleURL&udi=B6T6X-4FN2N97-3&user=4250274&rdoc=1&fmt=&orig=search&sort=d&view=c&acct=C000052423&version=1&urlVersion=0&userid=4250274&md5=a2b99f1540b252a236eb7079a77e4a83. (Accessed July 30, 2008).
- Finney, M.A.; Cohen, J.D.. 2003.** Expectation and evaluation of fuel management objectives. In: Fire, Fuel Treatments, and Ecological Restoration: Conference Proceedings: 2002 16-18 April; Fort Collins, CO. Proceedings-RMRS-P-29. Fort Collins, CO: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Rocky Mountain Research Station: 353-366. http://www.fs.fed.us/rm/pubs/rmrs_p029/rmrs_p029_351_366.pdf. (Accessed July 30, 2008).

- Flannigan, M.D.; Stocks, B.J.; Wotton, B.M.** 2000. Climate change and forest fires. *The Science of the Total Environment*. 262: 221-229.
http://www.sciencedirect.com/science?_ob=ArticleURL&_udi=B6V78-41GWN77-3&_user=4250274&_rdoc=1&_fmt=&_orig=search&_sort=d&_view=c&_acct=C000052423&_version=1&_urlVersion=0&_userid=4250274&_md5=ce8d7f23351cbe5551cd0fe22a287353. (Accessed July 30, 2008).
- Flather, C.H.; Brady, S.J.; Knowles, M.S..** 1999. Wildlife resource trends in the United States: a technical document supporting the 2000 USDA Forest Service RPA assessment. Gen. Tech. Rep. RMRS-GTR-33. Fort Collins, CO: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Rocky Mountain Research Station. 79 p.
http://www.fs.fed.us/rm/pubs/rmrs_gtr33.pdf. (Accessed October 26, 2007).
- Fleischmann, D.J.;** 2006. Geothermal development needs in Idaho. ID: Geothermal Energy Association. 51 p. <http://www.geo-energy.org/publications/reports/Idaho%20Geothermal%20Report.pdf>. (Accessed November 2, 2007).
- Fraley, J.J.; Shepard, B.B.** 1989. Life history, ecology, and population status of migratory bull trout (*Salvelinus confluentus*) in the Flathead Lake and river system, Montana. *Northwest Sci.* 63: 133-143.
- Fredrick, G.P.** 1991. Effects of forest roads on grizzly bears, elk, and gray wolves: a literature review. Publication Number R1-91-73. Libby, MT: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Kootenai National Forest. 53 p.
- Furniss, M. J.; Roeloff, T.D.; Yee, C. S.** 1991. Road construction and maintenance. In: Meehan, W.R., ed. Influences of forest and rangeland management on salmonid fishes and their habitats. Special Publication 19. Bethesda, MD: American Fisheries Society: 297-323.
- Gaines, W.L.; Lyons, A.L.; Lehmkuhl, J.F.; Raedeke, K.J.** 2005. Landscape evaluation of female black bear habitat effectiveness and capability in the North Cascades, Washington. *Biological Conservation*. 125(4): 411-425.
http://www.fs.fed.us/pnw/pubs/journals/uncaptured/pnw_2005_gaines001.pdf. (Accessed October 26, 2007).
- Garcia-Hernandez, J.; Glenn, E.P.; Artiola, J.; Baumgartner, D.J.** 2000. Bioaccumulation of selenium (Se) in the Cienaga de Santa Clara wetland, Sonora, Mexico. *Ecotoxicology and Environmental Safety*. 46: 298-304.
- Garrod, G.D.; Willis, K.G..** 1992. The environmental economic impact of woodland: a two-stage hedonic price model of the amenity value of forest in Britain. *Applied Economics*. 24: 715-728.
- Gebert, K.M.; Calkin, D.E.; Schuster, E.G..** 2004. The Secure Rural Schools Act of 2000: does it make rural schools secure? *Journal of Education Finance*. 30(2): 176-186.
- Gebert, K.M.; D.E. Calkin; E.G. Schuster.** 2005. The Secure Rural Schools Act, Federal land payments, and property tax equivalency. *Western Journal of Applied Forestry*. 20(1): 50-57.
<http://www.ingentaconnect.com/content/saf/wjaf/2005/00000020/00000001/art00006>. (Accessed October 26, 2007).
- Gebert, K.M.; Odell, S.L.** 2007. A descriptive analysis of change in eligibility status for the USDA Forest Service economic recovery program. Res. Pap. RMRS-RP-62WWW. Fort Collins, CO: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Rocky Mountain Research Station. 32 p.
http://www.fs.fed.us/rm/pubs/rmrs_rp062.pdf. (Accessed October 26, 2007).
- Geothermal Task Force.** 2006. Geothermal task force report. Western Governor's Association. 67 p.
<http://www.westgov.org/wga/initiatives/cdeac/Geothermal-full.pdf>. (Accessed November 2, 2007)

- Gibbs, J.P. 1998.** Amphibian movements in response to forest edges, roads, and streambeds in southern New England. *Journal of Wildlife Management*. (62): 584–589.
<http://www.jstor.org/view/0022541x/ap070243/07a00170/0>. (Accessed October 26, 2007).
- Graham, P. 1981.** Status of white sturgeon in the Kootenai River. Unpublished report available at Montana Department of Fish, Wildlife, and Parks, 490 N Meridian Rd, Kalispell, MT 59901.
- Graham, R.T. 2003.** Hayman fire case study. Gen. Tech. Rep. RMRS-GTR-114. Ogden, UT: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Rocky Mountain Research Station; 396 p.
<http://www.treesearch.fs.fed.us/pubs/5588>. (Accessed July 30, 2008).
- Graham, R.T.; Harvey, A.E.; Jain, T.B.; Tonn, J.R.. 1999.** The effects of thinning and similar stand treatments on fire behavior in western forests. Gen. Tech. Rep. PNW-GTR-463. Portland, OR: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Pacific Northwest Research Station. 27 p.
http://www.fs.fed.us/pnw/pubs/gtr_463.pdf. (Accessed October 26, 2007).
- Graham, R.T.; McCaffrey, S.; Jain, T.B. 2004.** Science basis for changing forest structure to modify wildfire behavior and severity. Gen. Tech. Rep. RMRS-GTR-120. Fort Collins, CO: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Rocky Mountain Research Station. 43 p.
http://www.fs.fed.us/rm/pubs/rmrs_gtr120.pdf (Accessed July 30, 2008).
- Graham, R.T.; Jain, T.B.; Mathews, S. 2006.** Fuel management in forests of the inland western United States. In: Elliot, W.J.; Audin, L.J., eds. Cumulative watershed effects of fuels management in the Western United States. http://forest.moscowfs.wsu.edu/engr/cwe/Graham_Jain_Chap_Figs_Final.pdf. (Accessed October 26, 2007).
- Greater Yellowstone Coalition. 2008.** Comments on the draft EIS for the proposed Idaho roadless rule, including associated attachments. Letter 1649. Available at: Project record for the Roadless Area Conservation, National Forest System Lands in Idaho.
- Green, P.; Joy, J.; Sirucek, D.; Hann, W.; Zack, A.; Naumann, B. 1992 (errata corrected 02/2005).** Old growth forest types of the Northern Region. Unpublished report. Missoula, MT: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Northern Region. 60 p.
http://www.fs.fed.us/r1/projects/forest-rangeland/green_et al.pdf. (Accessed July 30, 2008).
- Grumbine, E. 1999.** Beyond conservation and preservation in American environmental values. In: Driver, B.L. [et al.], eds. *Nature and the human spirit: toward an expanded land management ethic*. State College, PA: Venture Publishing, Inc.: 237–245.
- Hamilton, R.C. 1993.** Characteristics of old-growth forests in the Intermountain Region. Unpublished report. Ogden, UT: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Intermountain Region. 86 p.
- Hamilton, S.J. 2002.** Rationale for a tissue-based selenium criterion for aquatic life. *Aquatic Toxicology*. 57: 85–100.
- Hann, W.J.; Shrohm, D.J. 2003.** Fire regime condition class and associated data for fire and fuels planning: methods and application. In: *Fire, fuel treatments, and ecological restoration: conference proceedings: 2002, 16–18 April*; Fort Collins, CO. Proceedings-RMRS-P-29. Fort Collins, CO: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Rocky Mountain Research Station: 397–433.
http://www.fs.fed.us/rm/pubs/rmrs_p029/rmrs_p029_397_434.pdf. (Accessed July 30, 2008).
- Hardy, C.C.; Bunnell, D.L.; Menakis, J.P.; Schmidt, K.M.; Long, D.G.. 2000.** Coarse-scale spatial data for wildland fire and fuel management. Fort Collins, CO: Rocky Mountain Research Station, Prescribed Fire and Fire Effects Research Unit.
www.fs.fed.us/fire/fuelman. (Accessed October 26, 2007).

Deleted: Gresswell, R. E., ed. 1988. Status and management of interior stocks of cutthroat trout. *American Fisheries Society Symposium* 4. Bethesda, MD: American Fisheries Society. 140 p. ¶

- Harr, R.D. 1981.** Some characteristics and consequences of snowmelt during rainfall in western Oregon. *Journal of Hydrology*. 53: 277-304.
- Hansen, A.J.; Neilson, R.P.; Dale, V.H.; Flather, C.H.; Iverson, L.R.; Currie, D.J.; Shafer, S.; Cook, R.; Bartlein, P.J. 2001.** Global changes in forests: responses of species, communities, and biomes. *BioScience*. 51(9): 765-779. <http://www.bioone.org/perlserv/?request=get-abstract&doi=10.1641%2F0006-3568%282001%29051%5B0765%3AGCIFRO%5D2.0.CO%3B2&ct=1>. (Accessed July 30 2008).
- Hart, M.M.; Williams, W.A.; Thornton, P.C. ; McLaughlin, K.P.; Tobalske, C.M.; Maxell, B.A.; Hendricks, D.P.; Peterson, C.R.; Redmond, R.L. 1998.** Montana atlas of terrestrial vertebrates. Missoula, MT: University of Montana, Montana Cooperative Wildlife Research Unit. 1302 p.
- Hartnett, D.C.; Bazzaz, F.A. 1985.** The genet and ramet population dynamics of *Solidago canadensis* in an abandoned old field. *Journal of Ecology*. 73: 755-761. <http://www.jstor.org/view/00220477/di985458/98p0004e/0>. (Accessed October 26, 2007).
- Hayes, J.P.; Weikel, J.M.; Huso, M.M.P.. 2003.** Response of birds to thinning young Douglas-fir forests. *Ecological Applications*. 13(5): 1222-1232. <http://fresc.usgs.gov/products/fs/fs-033-03.pdf>. (Accessed October 26, 2007).
- Hicks, B.J.; Hall, J.D.; Bisson, P.A.; Sedell, J.R.. 1991.** Responses of salmonids to habitat changes. In: Meehan, W.R., ed. Influences of forest and rangeland management on salmonid fishes and their habitats. Special Publication 19. Bethesda, MD: American Fisheries Society: 483-518.
- Hlohowskyj, I. 2008.** Argonne National Lab; Spreadsheet dated 2/12/08
- Holton, G.S. 1980.** The riddle of existence: fishes of special concern. *Montana Outdoors*. 11: 2-6.
- Honnay, O.; Bossuyt, B.. 2005.** Prolonged clonal growth: escape route or route to extinction? *Oikos*. 108: 427-432. <http://www.blackwell-synergy.com/doi/pdf/10.1111/j.0030-1299.2005.13569.x>. (Accessed October 26, 2007).
- Honnay, O.; Bossuyt, B. 2005.** Prolonged clonal growth: escape route or route to extinction? *Oikos*. 108: 427-432. <http://www3.interscience.wiley.com/journal/118647488/abstract?CRETRY=1&SRETRY=0>. (Accessed July 30, 2008).
- Hornbeck, J.W.; Leak, W.B.. 1992.** Ecology and management of northern hardwood forests in New England. Gen. Tech. Rep. NE-159. Radnor, PA: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Northeastern Forest Experiment Station. 44 p. http://www.fs.fed.us/ne/newtown_square/publications/technical_reports/pdfs/scanned/gtr159.pdf. (Accessed October 26, 2007).
- Hughey, M. 2007.** [Personal communication]. Road development cost estimates. Regional development engineer, U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Northern Region. Missoula, Montana.
- Hutto, R.L.; Gallo, S.M. 2006.** The effects of postfire salvage logging on cavity-nesting birds. *Condor*. 108(4): 817-831. http://dbs.umt.edu/research_labs/huttolab/PDF/publications/2006-Hutto&Gallo-condor%20proofs.pdf. (Accessed October 26, 2007).
- Idaho Department of Agriculture. 1999.** Idaho's strategic plan for managing noxious weeds. Boise, ID. 11 pp. <http://agri.idaho.gov/Categories/PlantsInsects/NoxiousWeeds/Documents/general/st ratplan.pdf> (Accessed November 2, 2007).
- Idaho Department of Agriculture. 2005.** [Idaho invasive plan](#). Unpublished report prepared for the Idaho Invasive Species Council by the Northwest Natural Resource Group-LLC. 103 pp. <http://agri.idaho.gov/Categories/Environment/InvasiveSpeciesCouncil/StrategicActPlan.php>. (Accessed November 2, 2007).
- Idaho Department of Agriculture. 2007.** Noxious weed inventory GIS layer. Unpublished database. p. 3.

- Idaho Department of Commerce. 2005.** Profile of rural Idaho. Boise, ID: Division of Economic Development. 2005IDC 99-331. p. 3 <http://irp.idaho.gov/ProfileofRuralIdaho/tabid/204/Default.aspx>. (Accessed November 2, 2007).
- Idaho Department of Environmental Quality. 2004** Interagency forest practices water quality audit. Boise, ID.
- Idaho Department of Environmental Quality (IDEQ) 2007.** Protecting Drinking water sources in Idaho. 66 pp. http://www.deq.state.id.us/water/data_reports/source_water/drinking_water_protection_guidance.pdf.
- Idaho Department of Environmental Quality (IDEQ) 2008.** Draft Integrated Report: Section 5, Impaired Waters. 105 pp. Boise, ID. http://www.deq.state.id.us/water/data_reports/surface_water/monitoring/integrated_report_2008_sec5.pdf. (Accessed July 21, 2008).
- Idaho Department of Fish and Game (IDFG). 2005.** Idaho comprehensive wildlife conservation strategy. Boise, ID: Idaho Conservation Data Center. <http://fishandgame.idaho.gov/cms/tech/DC/cwcs.cfm>. (Accessed October 26, 2007).
- Idaho Department of Fish and Game (IDFG). 2007.** Idaho's special status plants. Boise, ID: Idaho Conservation Data Center. <http://fishandgame.idaho.gov/cms/tech/DC/plants/>. (Accessed October 26, 2007).
- Idaho Department of Labor (IDL). 2005.** Census bureau projects 52% increase in population. Department of Labor News. <http://cl.idaho.gov/news/Home/tabid/294/ctl/PressRelease/mid/1047/ItemID/1475/Default.aspx>. (Accessed October 26, 2007).
- Idaho Department of Lands (IDL). 1992.** Best Management Practices for Mining in Idaho. Boise, ID: Idaho Department of Lands. http://www.idl.idaho.gov/Bureau/Minerals/bmp_manual1992/bmp_index.htm. (Accessed August 1, 2008).
- Idaho Department of Lands (IDL). 2000.** Forest practices cumulative watershed effects. In: Idaho Forest Practices Act. Boise, ID: Idaho Department of Lands. 82pp. <http://www.idl.idaho.gov/bureau/ForestAssist/CWE-Combined.pdf>. (Accessed November 2, 2007).
- Idaho Department of Lands (IDL). 2002.** Idaho statewide implementation strategy for the national fire plan (July). Boise, ID: Idaho Department of Lands. 6p. http://www.idl.idaho.gov/nat_fire_plan/idaho_nfp_implement_plan.pdf. (Accessed July 30, 2008).
- Idaho Department of Lands (IDL). 2007.** County wildfire protection plans. http://www.idl.idaho.gov/nat_fire_plan/county_wui_plans/index.htm. (Accessed October 26, 2007).
- Idaho Partners in Flight. 2000.** Bird conservation plan. Version 1.0. http://www.blm.gov/wildlife/plan/pl_id_10.pdf. (Accessed October 27, 2007).
- Idaho State Fire Plan Working Group. 2007.** Greetings from Steve Kimball, Idaho's national fire plan coordinator. ISFPWG Newsletter. 2(2): 1-4. <http://www.idahofireplan.org/images/August%202007.pdf>. (Accessed October 26, 2007).
- Impact Assessment, Inc. 1995.** Social assessment for the Kootenai National Forest. USDA Forest Service, Kootenai National Forest, Libby, Montana. 330pp. http://www.fs.fed.us/r1/kootenai/projects/planning/documents/soc_asses/index.shtml (Accessed November 2, 2007).
- Independent Scientific Advisory Board (ISAB). 2007.** Climate change impacts on Columbia River basin fish and wildlife. ISAB Climate Change Report ISAB 2007-2. 136 pp. <http://www.nwcouncil.org/library/isab/isab2007-2.htm>. (Accessed July 30, 2008).

- Jain, T.B.; Graham, R.T. 2007.** The relation between tree burn severity and forest structure in the Rocky Mountains. In: Restoring fire-adapted ecosystems: proceedings of the 2005 National Silviculture Workshop. Gen. Tech. Rep. PSW-GTR-203. Albany, CA: USDA Forest Service. 306 p.
http://www.fs.fed.us/psw/publications/documents/psw_gtr203/psw_gtr203_017jain.pdf. (Accessed July 30, 2008).
- Jasinski, S.M. 1999.** Phosphate rock. Washington, DC: U.S. Geological Survey. 13 p.
- Jasinski, S.M.; Lee, W.H.; Causey, J.D.. 2004.** The history of production of the western phosphate field. In Hein, J.R., ed. Life cycle of the phosphoria formation: from deposition to the post-mining environment. Handbook of exploration and environmental geochemistry, Vol. 8, (M. Hale, series editor). Amsterdam: Elsevier: 45-71.
- Johnson, K.M.; C.L. Beale. 1994.** The recent revival of widespread population growth in nonmetropolitan areas of the United States. *Rural Sociology*. 59(4): 655-667.
http://eric.ed.gov/ERICWebPortal/custom/portlets/recordDetails/detailmini.jsp?_nfpb=true&_ERICExtSearch_SearchValue_0=EJ500056&ERICExtSearch_SearchType_0=no&accno=EJ500056. (Accessed July 30, 2008).
- Johnson, J.D.; Rasker, R.. 1995.** The role of economic and quality of life values in rural business locations. *Journal of Rural Studies*. 11(4): 405-416.
- Johnson, K.P.; J.R. Kort. 2004.** 2004 redefinition of BEA economic areas. *Survey of Current Business*. 68-75.
- Johnson, M.C., Peterson, D.L.; Raymond, C.L.. 2007.** Guide to fuel treatments in dry forests of the Western United States: assessing forest structure and fire hazard. Portland, OR. Gen. Tech. Rep. PNW-GTR-686. U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Pacific Northwest Research Station. 322 pp.
http://www.fs.fed.us/pnw/publications/pnw_gtr686/. (Accessed August 1, 2008).
- Joly, K.; Nellemann, C.; Vistnes, I.. 2006.** A reevaluation of caribou distribution near an oilfield road on Alaska's north slope. *Wildlife Society Bulletin*. 34(3): 866-869.
<http://www.bioone.org/archive/0091-7648/34/3/pdf/i0091-7648-34-3-866.pdf>. (Accessed October 26, 2007).
- Kalabokidis, K.D.; Omni, P.N.. 1998.** Reduction of fire hazard through thinning/residue disposal of fire hazard through thinning/residue disposal in the urban interface. In. *J. Wildl. Fire* 8:29-35.
http://www.landsinfo.org/ecosystem_defense/science_documents/Kalabokidis_Omi_1998.pdf. (Accessed August 1, 2008).
- Kashian, D.M.; Romme, W.H.; Tinker, D.B.; Turner, M.G.; Ryan, M.G.. 2006.** Carbon storage on landscapes with stand-replacing fires. *BioScience*. 56(7): 598-606.
<http://www.bioone.org/archive/0006-3568/56/7/pdf/i0006-3568-56-7-598.pdf>. (Accessed October 26, 2007).
- Kempton, W.; Boster, J.S.; Hartley, J.A.. 1996.** Environmental values in American culture. Cambridge, MA: MIT Press.
- Kim, Y.-S.; Johnson, R.L. 2002.** The impact of forests and forest management on neighboring property values. *Society and Natural Resources*. 15: (10) 887-901.
- Kinley, T.A.; Apps, C.D. 2007.** Caribou habitat modeling for the South Selkirk Mountains Ecosystem including habitat assessments for the Priest Lake endowment lands. 52 pp.
- Kirschbaum, M.A. 2003.** Seventh approximation - data form for conventional assessment units, Wyoming Thrust Belt Province, U.S. Geological Survey (version 6, 9 April 2003). In: National Oil and Gas Assessment: 4
<http://certmapper.cr.usgs.gov/data/noga00/prov36/tabular/c360101.pdf>. (Accessed October 26, 2007).
- Knudson, K. 1994.** Water quality status report: Kootenay River basin British Columbia, Montana, and Idaho. Ecological Resource Consulting, Report to the Kootenai River Network, Libby, Montana. Available at: director@kootenairivernetwork.org.

- Kolb, A.; Diekmann, M. 2005.** Effects of life-history traits on responses of plant species to forest fragmentation. *Conservation Biology*. 19: 929-93. <http://www.blackwell-synergy.com/doi/pdf/10.1111/j.1523-1739.2005.00065.x>. (Accessed October 26, 2007).
- Krist, F.J. Jr.; Sapio, F.J.; Tkacz, B.M. 2007.** Mapping risk from forest insects and diseases. FHTET 2007-6. Washington, DC: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Forest Health Protection, Forest Health Technology Enterprise Team. <http://www.fs.fed.us/foresthealth/technology/nidrm.shtml>. (Accessed August 1, 2008).
- Krutilla, J. V. 1967.** Conservation reconsidered. *American Economic Review*. 56: 777-786. <http://www.jstor.org/view/00028282/di950397/95p0252k/0>. (Accessed October 26, 2007).
- Krutilla, J.V.; Fischer, A. 1975.** The economics of natural environments. Baltimore, MD: Johns Hopkins University Press.
- Landres, P.; Boutcher, S.; Merigliano, L.; Barns, C.; Davis, D.; Hall, T.; Henry, S.; Hunter, B.; Janiga, P.; Laker, M.; McPherson, A.; Powell, D.S.; Rowan, M.; Sater, S. 2005.** Monitoring selected conditions related to wilderness character: a national framework. Gen. Tech. Rep. RMRS-GTR-151. Fort Collins, CO: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Rocky Mountain Research Station. 38 p. <http://www.treesearch.fs.fed.us/pubs/9459> (Accessed November 2, 2007).
- LANDFIRE. 2007. The National Map LANDFIRE National Existing Vegetation Type layer. (2007, September).** U.S. Department of Interior, Geological Survey.[Online]. Available: <http://gisdata.usgs.net/website/landfire/>
- Lavine, A.; Kuyumjian, G.A.; Reneau, S.L.; Katzman, D.; Malman, D. 2006.** A five-year record of sedimentation in the Los Alamos reservoir, New Mexico, following the Cerro Grande Fire. Proceedings of the Eighth Federal Interagency Sedimentation Conference and 3rd Federal Interagency Hydrologic Modeling Conference, April 2006. Reno, NV. LA-UR-05_7526_paper.pdf. 8 pp <http://www.fws.gov/fire/ifcc/Esr/Library/LARsedimentaton.pdf>. (Accessed August 1, 2008).
- Layser, Timothy. 2008 (May 13).** [Personal communication]. Wildlife biologist, U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Idaho Panhandle National Forest, Priest Lake, Idaho.
- Lee, D.C.; Sedell, J.R.; Rieman, B.R.; Thurow, R.F.; Williams, J.E.; [and others]. 1997.** In: Quigley, T.M.; S.J. Arbelbide, tech eds. An assessment of ecosystem components in the interior Columbia basin and portions of the Klamath and Great Basins: vol. 3, ch. 4. Gen. Tech. Rep. PNW-GTR-405. Portland, OR: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Pacific Northwest Research Station: 1058-1496.
- Lewis, J.W., 2000.** Mapping risk from forest insects and disease. Washington, DC: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service. <http://www.srs.fs.usda.gov/sustain/conf/abs/lewis.htm>. (Accessed October 27, 2007).
- Liddle, M.J. 1975.** A selective review of the ecological effects of human trampling on natural ecosystems. *Biological Conservation*. 7: 17-36.
- Liddle, M.J. 1991.** Recreation ecology: effects of trampling on plants and corals. *Trends in Ecology and Evolution*. 6(1): 13-17.
- Lockheed Martin Energy Research Corporation. 1999.** Landscan global population 1998 database. Unpublished report prepared for contract DE-AC05-96OR22464, with the U. S. Department of Energy. On file at: Oak Ridge, TN: Oak Ridge National Laboratory, P. O. Box 2008, MS 6237. 12 p.

- Loeb, S.C.; T.A. Waldrop; D.W. Leput. 2002.** Effects of forest thinning and prescribed burning on bat activity in the Piedmont of South Carolina. *Bat Research News*. 43(4): 164.
- Loomis, John B. 2000.** Vertically summing public good demand curves: an empirical comparison of economic versus political jurisdictions. *Land Economics*. 76 (2): 312–321.
- Loseke, Mark. 2008 (May 23).** [Personal communication]. Fuels management specialist, U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Boise National Forest, Cascade Ranger District, Cascade, ID.
- Luce, C.H.; Wemple, B.C. 2001.** Introduction to special issue on hydrologic and geomorphic effects of forest roads. *Earth Surf. Process. Landforms*. 26: 111–113.
http://www.fs.fed.us/rm/pubs_other/rmrs_2001_luce_c001.pdf. (Accessed October 26, 2007).
- Lull, H.W.; Reinhart, K.G.. 1972.** Forests and floods in the eastern United States. Res. Pap. NE-226. Upper Darby, PA: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Northeastern Forest Experiment Station. 94 p.
<http://www.treesearch.fs.fed.us/pubs/23672>. (Accessed October 26, 2007).
- Lybecker, D.L.; Shields, D.; Haefele, M. 2005.** Survey responses from the Intermountain West: are we achieving the public's objectives for forests and rangelands? Gen. Tech. Rep. RMRS-GTR-160. Fort Collins, CO: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service. 35 p.
http://www.fs.fed.us/rm/pubs/rmrs_gtr160.pdf. (Accessed October 26, 2007).
- MacCleery, D.W.; Le Master, D.C.. 1999.** The historical foundation and evolving context for natural resource management on Federal lands. In: Szaro, R.C.; Johnson, N.C.; Sexton, W.T.; Malk, A.J., eds. *Ecological stewardship: a common reference for ecosystem management*, volume II. Oxford: Elsevier Science Ltd: 517–556.
- MacDonald, L.H.; Coe, D. 2006.** Influence of headwater streams on downstream reaches in forested areas. *Forest Science*. 53(2): 148–168.
<http://www.ingentaconnect.com/content/saf/fs/2007/00000053/00000002/art00005>. (Accessed July 30, 2008).
- Maier, K.J.; C.R. Nelson; F.C. Bailey; S.J. Klaine; A.W. Knight. 1998.** Accumulation of selenium in the aquatic biota of a watershed treated with seleniferous fertilizer. *Bulletin of Environmental Contamination and Toxicology*. 60: 409–416.
http://www.springerlink.com/content/gak_k9d2gp5r8cmqm/fulltext.pdf. (Accessed October 26, 2007).
- Marcot, B.G.; Castellano, M.A.; Christy, J.A.; Croft, L.K.; Lehmkuhl, J.F.; Naney, R.H.; Nelson, K.; Niwa, C.G.; Rosentreter, R.E.; Sandquist, R.E.; Wales, B.C.; Zieroth, E. 1997.** In: Quigley, T. M.; Arbelbide, S.J., tech. eds. *An assessment of ecosystem components in the interior Columbia basin and portions of the Klamath and Great Basins: volume 3, chapter 5, terrestrial ecology assessment*. Gen. Tech. Rep. PNW-GTR-405. Portland, OR: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Pacific Northwest Research Station: 447–667.
http://www.fs.fed.us/pnw/publications/ic_bemp.shtml.
- Marlin, J.C.; LaBerge, W.E. 2001.** *The native bee fauna of Carlinville, Ill., revisited after 75 years: a case for persistence*. *Conservation Ecology*. 5(1): 9.
<http://www.consecol.org/vol5/iss1/art9/>. (Accessed October 26, 2007).
- Marsh, D.M.; Milam, G.S.; Gorham, N.P.; Beckman, N.G. 2005.** Forest Roads as partial barriers to terrestrial salamander movement. *Conservation Biology*. 19(6): 2004–2008.
<http://www.blackwell-synergy.com/doi/pdf/10.1111/j.1523-1739.2005.00238.x>. (Accessed October 26, 2007).

- Marshal, J.P.; V.C. Bleich; P.R. Krausman; M.L. Reed; N.G. Andrew; V.C. Bueich. 2006.** Factors affecting habitat use and distribution of desert mule deer in an arid environment. *Wildlife Society Bulletin*. 34(3): 609-619. <http://www.bioone.org/archive/0091-7648/34/3/pdf/i0091-7648-34-3-609.pdf>. (Accessed October 26, 2007).
- Martinson, E.; Omi, P.N.; Shepperd, W. 2003.** Effects of fuel treatments on fire severity. In: Graham, R.T., tech. ed. Hayman fire case study. Gen. Tech. Rep. RMRS-GTR-114. Ogden, UT: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Rocky Mountain Research Station: 96-126. http://www.fs.fed.us/rm/pubs/rmrs_gtr114.pdf. (Accessed July 30, 2008).
- Mattson, D.J.; K.C. Kendall; D.P. Reinhart. 2001.** Whitebark pine, grizzly bears, and red squirrels. In: Whitebark pine communities: ecology and restoration. Part II, Chapter 7. The biology of whitebark pine. Tomback, D.F.; S.F. Arno; R.E. Keane, Contributing Editors. p. 121-136.
- May, B.E.; Urie, W.; Shepard, B.B. 2003.** Range-wide status of Yellowstone cutthroat trout (*Oncorhynchus clarkii bowieri*): 2001. Montana Department of Fish, Wildlife, and Parks. http://fwp.mt.gov/FwpPaperApps/wildthi_ngs/yctbbs063003.pdf. (Accessed July 30, 2008).
- Maxell, B. 2000.** Management of Montana's amphibians: a review of risk factors to population viability. Unpublished report (43-0343-0-0224) to: Northern Regional Office (Region 1), USDA Forest Service. Missoula, MT, September 20, 2000. 161 p. http://www.isu.edu/~petechar/iparc/Maxell_Mgmnt.pdf. (Accessed December 12, 2007).
- McClelland, D.E.; Foltz, R.B.; Falter, C.M.; Wilson, W.D.; Cundy, T.; T.P. Schuster, R.L.; Saubier, J.; Rabe, C.; Heinemann, R.. 1997.** Relative effects on a low-volume road system of landslides resulting from episodic storms in northern Idaho. *Transportation Research Record*. 2(1652): 235-243. <http://trb.metapress.com/content/u40818v54406n81j/fulltext.pdf>.
- McKenzie, D.; Gedalof, Z.; Peterson, D.L.; Mote, P. 2004.** Climate change, wildfire, and conservation. *Conservation Biology*. 18(4): 890-902. <http://www3.interscience.wiley.com/journal/118784300/abstract?CRETRY=1&SRETRY=0>.
- Meehan, W.R., ed. 1991.** Influences of forest and rangeland management on salmonid fishes and their habitats. Special Publication 19. Bethesda, MD: American Fisheries Society. p. 1-14, 181-204, 297-323, 425-457. <http://www.jstor.org/view/00458511/ap050425/05a00470/0>. (Accessed October 26, 2007).
- Minnesota IMPLAN Group. 2006.** Welcome to the web site of Minnesota IMPLAN Group, Inc. <http://www.implan.com>. (Accessed October 26, 2007).
- Miles, P.D. 2007.** Forest inventory mapmaker web-application version 2.1. St. Paul, MN: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, North Central Research Station. http://www.ncrs2.fs.fed.us/4801/fiadb/ind_ex.htm. (Accessed June 07, 2007).
- Miller, C.; Urban, D.L. 1999.** Forest pattern, fire, and climatic change in the Sierra Nevada. *Ecosystems*. 2: 76-87. <http://www.springerlink.com/content/5167814gr4cclhj0/fulltext.pdf>.
- Milius, S. 1999.** Killer skin fungus nails boreal toads. *Science News*. 156: 219.
- Milius, S. 2000.** New frog-killing disease may not be so new. *Science News*. 157: 133.
- Mitchell, M.S.; Powell, R.A. 2003.** Response of black bears to forest management in the southern Appalachian Mountains. *Journal of Wildlife Management*. 67(4): 692-705. <http://www.jstor.org/view/0022541x/ap070265/07a00060/0>. (Accessed October 26, 2007).
- Moll J. 1993.** Environmentally sensitive roads. Engineering field notes, engineering staff, USDA Forest Service, volume 26, November-December 1993.

- Moll, J. 1996.** A Guide for road closure and obliteration in the Forest Service. Publ. 9677 1205-SDTDC. (GPO 784-098/31003). Washington, DC: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, San Dimas Technology and Development Center, Engineering Staff. 49 p.
<http://ntlsearch.bts.gov/tris/record/tris/00863435.html>.
- Moore, T. 2007.** National Forest System road trends, trends analysis. Unpublished draft report submitted to Office of Management and Budget. On file at: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, engineering staff, Washington Office, Washington, DC.
- Morell, V. 1999.** Are pathogens felling frogs? *Science*. 284:728-731.
- Morgan, T.A.; Keegan, C.E. III; Spoelma, T.; Dillion, A.L.; Hearst, F.G.; Wagner, L.T. Deblander, L.T. 2004.** Idaho's forest products industry: a descriptive analysis. Resource. Bull. RMRS-RB-4. Fort Collins, CO: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Rocky Mountain Research Station, 31 p.
<http://www.treesearch.fs.fed.us/pubs/7611>. (Accessed November 2, 2007)
- Moseley, R.K. 1998.** Ute ladies'-tresses (*Spiranthes diluvialis*) in Idaho: 1997 status report. Report prepared by the Conservation Data Center, Idaho Department of Fish and Game, Boise, ID.
- Mote, P.W.; Hamlet, A.F.; Clark, M.P.; Lettenmaier, D.P. 2005.** Declining mountain snowpack in western North America. *Bull. Amer. Meteor. Soc.* 86: 39-49.
<http://ams.allenpress.com/archive/1520-0477/86/1/pdf/i1520-0477-86-1-39.pdf>. (Accessed October 26, 2007).
- Moyle, P.B. and P.J. Randell. 1996.** Biotic integrity of watersheds. In: Sierra Nevada Ecosystem Project: Final Report to Congress, Volume 2, Chapter 33. Davis, California: Centers for Water and Wildland Resources, University of California.
- Murcia, C. 1995.** Edge effects in fragmented forests: implications for conservation. *Trends in Ecology and Evolution*. 10: 58-62.
<http://www.ingentaconnect.com/content/el/01695347/1995/00000010/00000002/art88977>. (Accessed October 26, 2007).
- Murphy, C. 2000.** Ute ladies tresses (*Spiranthes diluvialis*) in Idaho: Part B: 2000 status report. Prepared for the Bureau of Land Management Upper Snake River District and Targhee National Forest by the Conservation Data Center, Idaho Department of Fish and Game, Boise, ID.
http://www.blm.gov/pgdata/etc/medialib/blm/id/publications/technical_bulletins/tb_02-1.Par.64067.File.dat/part3.pdf. (Accessed July 31, 2008).
- Murphy, C. 2004.** Monitoring Ute ladies'-tresses (*Spiranthes diluvialis*) on the South Fork Snake River, Idaho: Conservation status and third year results of habitat monitoring. Report prepared by the Idaho Conservation Data Center, Idaho Department of Fish and Game, Boise, ID.
<http://idahodocs.cdmhost.com/cgi-bin/showfile.exe?CISOROOT=/p4012coll3&CISOPTR=2955&filename=2957.pdf>.
- Mushinsky, H.R.; Gibson, D.J. 1991.** The influence of fire periodicity on habitat structure. In: Bell, S.S.; McCoy, E.D.; Mushinsky, H.R., eds. *Habitat structure: the physical arrangement of objects in space*. NY: Chapman and Hall: 237-259.
- Myers. 2007.** Groundwater flow and contaminant transport at the Smoky Canyon Mine proposed panels F and G. Unpublished report prepared for the Natural Resources Defense Council and the Greater Yellowstone Coalition. Attachment to comment 1649.
- Mutch, R.W. 1994.** Fighting fire with prescribed fire: a return to ecosystem health. *Journal of Forestry*. 92(11): 31-33.
- National Ski Areas Association (NSAA). 2004.** Comments on the State Petition rulemaking. Unpublished report. 3 p.
- Nelson, R.L.; McHenry, M.L.; Platts, W.S.. 1991.** Mining. In: Meehan, W.R., ed. *Influence of forest and rangeland management on salmonid fishes and their habitats*. Special Publication 19. Bethesda, MD: American Fisheries Society: 425-458.
<http://www.jstor.org/view/00458511/ap050425/05a00470/0>. (Accessed October 26, 2007).

- Norse, E.A.; Rosenbaum, K.L.; Wilcove, D.S.; Wilcox, B.A.; Romme, W.H.; [et al.]. 1986. Conserving biological diversity in our national forests. Washington, DC: The Wilderness Society: 19–36,116. <http://www.jstor.org/view/08888892/di995132/99p0017b/0>. (Accessed October 26, 2007).
- Noss R.F. 2001. Beyond Kyoto: forest management in a time of rapid climate change. *Conservation Biology*. 15: 578–590. <http://www.blackwell-synergy.com/doi/pdf/10.1046/j.1523-1739.2001.015003578.x>. (Accessed October 26, 2007).
- O'Neal, K. 2002 (May). Effects of global warming on trout and salmon in U.S. streams. Report prepared for Defenders of Wildlife and the Natural Resources Defense Council. 44 p. http://www.defenders.org/resources/publications/programs_and_policy/science_and_economics/global_warming/effects_of_global_warming_on_trout_and_salmon.pdf.
- Orme, M. 2007 (June 14). [Personal Communication.] Wildlife biologist, USDA Forest Service, Caribou-Targhee National Forest, Idaho Falls, Idaho.
- Omi, P.N.; Joyce, L.A., tech. eds. 2003. Fire, fuel treatments, and ecological restoration: conference proceedings. Fort Collins, CO: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Rocky Mountain Research Station; 475 p. http://www.fs.fed.us/rm/pubs/rmrs_p029.pdf.
- Paragamian, V. L.; Whitman, V.; Hammond, J.; Andrusak, H.. 2000. Collapse of burbot fisheries in the Kootenai River, Idaho, USA, and Kootenay Lake, British Columbia, Canada. In: Paragamian, V. L.; Willis, D. W., eds. *Burbot: biology, ecology, and management*. Publication Number 1. Bethesda, MD: American Fisheries Society, Fisheries Management Section: 155–164.
- Parker, J.D.; Wulforst, J.D.; Kamm, J. 2002. Social assessment for the Idaho Panhandle National Forests. Moscow, ID: University of Idaho. 159 p. http://www.fs.fed.us/ipnf/eco/manage/fo_restplan/ipnf_social_assessment.pdf. (Accessed October 26, 2007).
- Parmesan C.; Yohe, G. 2003. A globally coherent fingerprint of climate change impacts across natural systems. *Nature*. 421: 37–42. <http://www.nature.com/nature/journal/v421/n6918/full/nature01286.html>. (Accessed October 26, 2007).
- Parrett, C.; Cannon, S.H.; Pierce, K.L. 2004. Wildfire-related floods and debris flows in Montana in 2000 and 2001. USGS Water-Resources Investigations Report 03-4319. Reston, VA: U.S. Geological Survey. 22p. http://pubs.usgs.gov/wri/wri03-4319/pdf/wrir03_4319.pdf. (Accessed October 26, 2007).
- Partners in Flight. 2007. Physiographic areas plans. <http://www.blm.gov/wildlife/pifplans.htm>. (Accessed October 27, 2007).
- Partridge, F. 1983. Kootenai River fisheries investigations in Idaho. Boise, ID: Idaho Department of Fish and Game.
- Patton-Mallory, M., ed. 2008. Woody biomass utilization strategy. Washington, DC: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service. 17 p.
- Patriquin, K.J.; R.M.R. Barclay. 2003. Foraging by bats in cleared, thinned and unharvested boreal forest. *Journal of Applied Ecology*. 40(4): 646–657. <http://www.blackwell-synergy.com/doi/pdf/10.1046/j.1365-2664.2003.00831.x>. (Accessed October 27, 2007).
- Peterson, D.L.; Johnson, M.C.; Agee, J.K.; Jain, T.B.; McKenzie, D.; Reinhardt, E.D. 2003. Fuels planning: managing forest structure to reduce fire hazard. 2nd International Wildland Fire Ecology and Fire Management Congress. 10 p. <http://ams.confex.com/ams/pdfpapers/74459.pdf>.

- Peterson, D.L.; Johnson, M.C.; Agee, J.K.; Jain, T.B.; McKenzie, D.; Reinhardt, E.D. 2005.** Forest structure and fire hazard in dry forests of the Western United States. Gen. Tech. Rep. PNW-GTR-628. Portland, OR: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Pacific Northwest Research Station. 30 p.
http://www.fs.fed.us/pnw/pubs/pnw_gtr628.pdf. (Accessed August 1, 2008).
- Peterson, J.T.; Bayley, P.B. 1993.** Colonization rates of fishes in experimentally defaunated warm water streams. Transactions of the American Fisheries Society. 122: 199-207.
- Petranka, J.W.; Eldridge, M.E.; Haley, K.E.. 1993.** Effects of timber harvesting on southern Appalachian salamanders. Conservation Biology. 7: 363-370.
- Pharo, E.J.; Zartman, C.E. 2007.** Bryophytes in a changing landscape: the hierarchical effects of habitat fragmentation on ecological and evolutionary processes. Biological Conservation. 135(3): 315-325.
<http://www.aseanbiodiversity.info/Abstract/51006525.pdf>. (Accessed October 27, 2007).
- Pierson, K.; Tepedino, V.J.; Sipes, S.; Kuta, K.. 2000.** Pollination ecology of the rare orchid, *Spiranthes diluvialis*: implications for conservation. In: Maschinski, J.; Holter, L., eds. Southwestern rare and endangered plants: proceedings of the third conference, September 25-28, 2000, Flagstaff, AZ. Proceedings RMRS-P-23. Fort Collins, CO: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Rocky Mountain Research Station: 153-164.
- Poff, N.L.; Brinson, M.M.; Day, J.W. Jr. 2002 (January).** Aquatic ecosystems and global climate change: potential impacts on inland freshwater and coastal wetland ecosystems in the United States. Prepared for the Pew Center on Global Climate Change, Arlington, VA. 44p.
<http://www.mapcruzin.com/download/AquaticEcosystems.pdf>.
- Pratt, K.L. 1992.** A review of bull trout life history. In: Howell, P.J.; Buchanan, D.B., eds. Proceedings of the Gearhart Mountain bull trout workshop., 1992 August, Gearhart Mountain, OR. Corvallis, OR: American Fisheries Society, Oregon Chapter: 5-9.
- Pratt, K.L.; Huston, J.E.. 1993.** Status of bull trout (*Salvelinus confluentus*) in Lake Pend Oreille and the lower Clark Fork River: draft. Spokane, WA: Washington Power Company.
- Pollet, J; Omi, P.N. 2002.** Effect of thinning and prescribe burning on crown fire severity in ponderosa pine forests. Int. J. Wildl. Fire 11: 1-10.
- Powe, N.A.; Garrod, G.D.; Brunsdon, C.F.; Willis, K. G.. 1997.** Using a geographic information system to estimate an hedonic price model of the benefits of woodland access. Forestry. 70: 139-149.
<http://forestry.oxfordjournals.org/cgi/reprint/70/2/139>. (Accessed October 27, 2007).
- Power TM. 1998.** Lost landscapes and failed economies: the search for a value of place. Washington (DC): Island Press: 1-56.
- Preisler, H.K.; Ager, A.A.; Wisdom, M.J. 2006.** Statistical methods for analyzing responses of wildlife to human disturbance. Journal of Applied Ecology. 43(1): 164-172.
- Presser, T.S.; Sylvester, M.A.; Lew, W.H. 1994.** Bioaccumulation of selenium from natural geologic sources in western states and its potential consequences. Environmental Management. 18: 423-436.
<http://www.springerlink.com/content/v555h85k3r768050/fulltext.pdf>. (Accessed October 27, 2007).
- RACNAC.** See Roadless Area Conservation National Advisory Committee.
- Rasker, R. 1994.** A new look at old vistas: the economic role of environmental quality in western public lands. University of Colorado Law Review. 65(2): 369-399.
- Rasker, R.; B. Alexander. 2003.** Working around the White Clouds: county and community profiles surrounding Idaho's Boulder, White Cloud, and Pioneer Mountains, Tucson, AZ: Sonoran Institute.
- Reese, J. B. 2000.** Record of decision, Targhee National Forest oil and gas leasing final EIS. U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Targhee National Forest. 17 p.

- Reeves, G.H.; Benda, L.E.; Burnett, K.M.; Bisson, P.A.; Sedell, J.R. 1995 A disturbance-based ecosystem approach to maintaining and restoring freshwater habitats of evolutionary significant units of anadromous salmonids in the Pacific Northwest. American Fisheries Society Symposium. 17: 334-349.
- Rehfeldt, G.E.; Crookston, N. L.; Warwell, M.V.; Evans, J.S. 2006. Empirical analysis of plant-climate relationships for the western United States. International Journal of Plant Sciences. 167 (6): 1123-1150. <http://www.journals.uchicago.edu/IJPS/journal/issues/v167n6/30167/30167.web.pdf>. (Accessed October 27, 2007).
- Reighn, C. 2007 (June 15). [Personal communication.] U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, Boise ID.
- Rieman, B.E.; McIntyre, J.D. 1993. Demographic and habitat requirements for the conservation of bull trout *Salvelinus confluentus*. General Technical Report INT-302. Ogden, UT: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Intermountain Research Station. http://www.fs.fed.us/rm/pubs_int/int_gtr_302.pdf.
- Rieman, B.; Lee, D.; McIntyre, J.; Overton, K.; Thurow, R. 1993 (December). Consideration of extinction risks for salmonids. Fish Habitat Relationships Technical Bulletin Number 14. <http://www.fs.fed.us/psw/rsl/projects/wild/lee/lee4.pdf>.
- Rieman, B.E.; Isaak, D.; Horan, D.; Nagel, D.; Luce, C.; Meyers, D. 2007. Anticipated climate warming effects on bull trout habitats and populations across the Interior Columbia River Basin. Transactions of the American Fisheries Society. 136: 1552-1565. <http://afs.allenpress.com/archive/1548-8659/136/6/pdf/i1548-8659-136-6-1552.pdf>.
- Reynolds, R.T.; Graham, R.T.; Reiser, M.H. 1991. Management recommendations for the northern goshawk in the southwestern United States. Gen. Tech. Rep. RM-217. Fort Collins, CO: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Rocky Mountain forest and Range Experiment station. 184 p. http://www.fs.fed.us/rm/pubs_rm/rm_gtr_217.pdf. (Accessed October 27, 2007).
- Risch, J. 2006. Petition of Governor James E. Risch. State Specific Rulemaking for Roadless Areas in Idaho. Office of the Governor, Boise, Idaho. 69 p. <http://roadless.fs.fed.us/idaho.shtml>. (Accessed November 2, 2007).
- Roadless Area Conservation National Advisory Committee [RACNAC]. 2006. RACNAC meeting summary, Nov. 29-30, 2006. Unpublished. 19 p. http://www.fs.fed.us/emc/roadless/nov_fi nal_mtg_summary.pdf. (Accessed November 2, 2007).
- Roadless Area Conservation National Advisory Committee [RACNAC]. 2006a. Advice of the RACNAC on State of Idaho's proposal to use the Administrative Procedures Act to amend the Forest Service Roadless Area Conservation Rule of 2001. Unpublished. 4 p. http://www.fs.fed.us/emc/roadless/racnac_idaho_letter.pdf. (Accessed November 2, 2007).
- Roadless Area Conservation National Advisory Committee [RACNAC]. 2007. RACNAC Charter, April 3, 2007. Unpublished. 3 p. http://roadless.fs.fed.us/documents/racnac_charter.pdf. (Accessed June 18, 2008).
- Roadless Area Conservation National Advisory Committee [RACNAC]. 2008a. January 1-17, 2008 Advisory Committee Meeting Summary. Unpublished. 8 p. http://roadless.fs.fed.us/documents/racnac/16_17_jan_final_mtgsum.pdf. (Accessed June 18, 2008).
- Roadless Area Conservation National Advisory Committee [RACNAC]. 2008b. February 20, 2008 Advisory Committee Meeting Summary. Unpublished. 8 p. http://roadless.fs.fed.us/documents/racnac/20_21_feb_final_mtgsum.pdf. Accessed June 18, 2008).
- Roadless Area Conservation National Advisory Committee [RACNAC]. 2008c. April 1-2, 2008 Advisory Committee Meeting Summary. Unpublished. 8 p. http://roadless.fs.fed.us/documents/racnac/01_02_apr2008_final_mtgsum.pdf. (Accessed June 18, 2008).

- Roadless Area Conservation National Advisory Committee [RACNAC]. 2008d.** April 25, 2008 Advisory Committee Meeting Summary. Unpublished. 8 p.
http://roadless.fs.fed.us/documents/racnac/25_apr2008_final_mtgsun.pdf. (Accessed June 18, 2008).
- Roadless Area Conservation National Advisory Committee [RACNAC]. 2008e.** Recommendations of the RACNAC on State of Idaho's draft Idaho Roadless Rule. Unpublished. 4 p.
http://roadless.fs.fed.us/documents/racnac/racnac_id_ltr_053008_final.pdf. (Accessed June 18, 2008).
- Robinson, S.K.; Thompson, F. R., III; Donavan, T.M.; Whitehead, D.R.; Faaborg, J. 1995.** Regional forest fragmentation and the nesting success of migratory birds. *Science*. 267: 1987-1990.
http://ncrs.fs.fed.us/pubs/jrnl/1995/nc_1995_Robinson_001.pdf. (Accessed October 27, 2007).
- Robison, S. 2007.** Reasonable foreseeable development scenario for oil and gas development for Caribou National Forest and Curlew National Grassland.
http://www.fs.fed.us/r4/caribou-targhee/projects/oil_gas/rfd.pdf. (Accessed October 27, 2007).
- Root, T.L.; Price, J.T.; Hall, K.R.; Schneider, S.H.; Rosenzweig, C.; Pounds, J.A.. 2003.** Fingerprints of global warming on wild animals and plants. *Nature*. 421: 57-60.
<http://www.nature.com/nature/journal/v421/n6918/full/nature01333.html>. (Accessed October 27, 2007).
- Rosenberg, K.V.; Lowe, J.D.; Dhondt, A.A. 1999.** Effects of forest fragmentation on breeding tanagers: a continental perspective. *Conservation Biology*. 13: 568-583.
<http://www.blackwell-synergy.com/doi/pdf/10.1046/j.1523-1739.1999.98020.x>. (Accessed October 27, 2007).
- RRC Associates. 2006** Projected demand and visitation for U.S. ski areas.
<http://www.skibitterrootresort.com/pdf/RybergrebuttalV4.pdf>. 11 p. (Accessed October 27, 2007).
- Ruediger, B; Claar, J.; Gniadek, S.; Holt, B.; Lewis, L.; Mighton, S.; Naney, B.; Patton, G.; Rinaldi, T.; Trick, J.; Vandehey, A.; Wahl, F.; Warren, N.; Wenger, D.; Williamson, A. 2000.** Canada lynx conservation assessment and strategy (LCAS). Publication Number R1-00-53. Missoula, MT: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service; U.S. Department of the Interior, Fish and Wildlife Service, Bureau of Land Management, and National Park Service. 142 p.
<http://www.fs.fed.us/r1/planning/lynx/exports/lcas.pdf>. (Accessed November 2, 2007).
- Ruefenacht, B.; Finco, M.V.; Nelson, M.D.; Czaplowski, R.; Helmer, E.H.; Blackard, J.A.; Holden, G.R.; Lister, A.J.; Salajanu, D.; Weyermann, D.; Winterberger, K. 2007.** Conterminous US and Alaska forest type mapping using Forest Inventory and Analysis.
- Rummer, R. 2006.** Cumulative watershed effects of fuels management: a western synthesis. In: Forest operations for fuel treatment. Auburn, AL: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Southern Research Station: 1-11.
http://www.srs.fs.usda.gov/pubs/ja/ja_rummer015.pdf. (Accessed October 27, 2007).
- Russell, J.C.; Adams-Russell, P.A. 2003.** Social assessment for the Kootenai National Forest, update. Libby, MT: Kootenai National Forest.
http://www.fs.fed.us/r1/kootenai/projects/planning/documents/soc_asses/2003/html/ch1/index.shtml. (Accessed October 27, 2007).
- Russell, J.C.; Adams-Russell, P.A. 2004.** Social assessment: Clearwater and Nez Perce National Forests. Placerville, CA: Adams-Russell Consulting. 234p.
http://www.fs.fed.us/cnpz/forest/news/assets/040420_soc_asmt_summary.doc. (Accessed October 27, 2007).

- Sackett, S.S.; Haase, S.M.; Harrington, M.G..** 1996. Lessons learned from fire use for restoring Southwestern ponderosa pine ecosystems. In: Covington, W.; Wagner, P. K., tech. cords. Proceedings of the conference on adaptive ecosystem restoration and management: restoration of cordilleran conifer landscapes of North America, June 6–8, 1996. Flagstaff, AZ. General Tech. Report RM-GTR-278:54-61. Fort Collins, CO: U. S. Dept. of Agriculture, Forest Service. <http://www.fs.fed.us/psw/publications/4403/Lessons.pdf>.
- Satterlund, D.R.; Adams, P.W.** 1992. Wildland watershed management. New York: John Wiley & Sons, Inc.
- Sauer, J.R.; Hines, J.E.; Fallon, J.** 2005. The North American breeding bird survey, results and analysis 1966–2005. Version 6.2.2006. Laurel, MD: USGS Patuxent Wildlife Research Center. <http://www.mbr-pwrc.usgs.gov/bbs/bbs.html>. (Accessed October 27, 2007).
- Schnackenberg, E.S.; MacDonald, L.H.** 1998. Detecting cumulative effects on headwater streams in the Routt National Forest, Colorado. AWRA Water Resources Bulletin. 34(5): 1163. <http://www3.interscience.wiley.com/cgi-bin/fulltext/119133632/PDFSTART>
- Schoennagel, T.; Veblen, T.; Romme, W.** 2004. The interaction of fire, fuels, and climate across Rocky Mountain Forests. *BioScience*. 54 (7): 661–676. <http://www.bioone.org/archive/0006-3568/54/7/pdf/i0006-3568-54-7-661.pdf>.
- Scott, J.H.** 2003. Canopy fuel treatment standards for wildland-urban interface. In: Fire, fuel treatments, and ecological restoration: conference proceedings: 2002 16–18 April; Fort Collins, CO. Proceedings-RMRS-P-29. Fort Collins, CO: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Rocky Mountain Research Station: 29-37. http://www.fs.fed.us/rm/pubs/rmrs_p029/rmrs_p029_029_038.pdf.
- Scott, J.H.; Reinhardt, E.D.** 2007. Effects of alternative treatments on canopy fuel characteristics in five conifer stands. In: Restoring fire-adapted ecosystems: proceedings of the 2005 National Silviculture Workshop. Gen. Tech. Rep. PSW-GTR-203. Albany, CA: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service. 306 p. http://www.fs.fed.us/psw/publications/documents/psw_gtr203/psw_gtr203_016scott.pdf. (Accessed August 1, 2008).
- Scott, J.M.; C.R. Peterson; J.W. Karl; E. Strand; L.K. Svancara; N.M. Wright.** 2002. A GAP analysis of Idaho: final report. Moscow, ID: Idaho Cooperative Fish and Wildlife Research Unit. http://www.wildlife.uidaho.edu/idgap/idgap_report.asp. (Accessed October 27, 2007).
- Scrivener, J.C.** 1982. Logging impacts on the concentration patterns of dissolved ions in Carnation Creek, British Columbia. In: Proceedings of the Carnation Creek workshop: a ten-year review. Moscow, ID: University of Idaho, Aquaculture Extension.
- Seyedbagheri, K.A.** 1996. Idaho forestry best management practices: compilation of research on their effectiveness. Gen. Tech. Rep. INT-GTR-339. Ogden, UT: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Intermountain Research Station. 3 p. http://www.fs.fed.us/rm/pubs_int/int_gtr339.pdf. (Accessed August 1, 2008).
- Sexauer, H.M.; James, P.W.** 1997. Microhabitat use by juvenile bull trout in four streams located in the eastern Cascades, Washington. In: Mackay, W.C.; Brewin, M.K.; Monita, M., eds. Friends of the bull trout conference proceedings. Calgary, AB: Bull Trout Task Force (Alberta), c/o Trout Unlimited Canada: 361–370.
- Shepard, B.; May, B.; Urie, W.** 2003. Status of westslope cutthroat trout (*Oncorhynchus clarki lewisi*) in the United States: 2002. Bozeman, MT: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service. 100 p.
- Shine, R.; Lemaster, M.; Wall, M.; Langkilde, T.; Mason, R.** 2004. Why did the snake cross the road? Effects of roads on movement and location of mates by garter snakes (*Thamnophis sirtalis parietalis*). *Conservation Ecology*. 9(1): 1–13. <http://www.ecologyandsociety.org/vol9/iss1/art9/>. (Accessed October 27, 2007).

- Skinner, C.N.; Ritchie, M.W.; Hamilton, T.; Symons, J. 2004.** Effects of thinning and prescribe fire on wildlife [wildfire] severity. In: Proceedings: forest vegetation management conference: 25 years of excellence – where we are, where we’ve been and where we’re going: January 20–22, 2004.
- Smith, D.M.; Larson, B.C.; Kelty, A.J.; Ashton, P.M.S. 1997.** The practice of silviculture: applied forest ecology. New York: Wiley: 3–4. [537 p.].
- Smith, J.E.; Heath, L.S. 2004.** Carbon stocks and projections on public forestlands in the United States, 1952–2040. *Environmental Management*. 33(4): 433–442. http://www.fs.fed.us/ne/newtown_square/publications/other_publishers/ne_2004_smith002p.pdf. (Accessed October 27, 2007).
- Smith, J.K., ed. 2000.** Wildland fire in ecosystems: effects of fire on fauna. Gen. Tech. Rep. RMRS-GTR-42, vol. 1. Ogden, UT: U. S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Rocky Mountain Research Station. 83 p. http://www.fs.fed.us/rm/pubs/rmrs_gtr042_1.pdf. (Accessed October 27, 2007).
- Sorg, C.F.; Loomis, J. 1985.** Economic value of Idaho sport fisheries with an update on valuation techniques. *North American Journal of Fisheries Management*. 6: 494–503.
- Sorg, C.F.; Nelson, L.J. 1986.** The net economic value of elk hunting in Idaho. *Research Bulletin RM-12*. Fort Collins, CO: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Rocky Mountain Research Station. 21 p.
- Southeast Idaho Selenium Information System. 2003.** Area wide human health and ecological risk assessment appendix F – ecological toxicity profiles. http://giscenter-ims.isu.edu/SISP/Area_Wide_Reports.html. (Accessed July 21, 2008).
- Southeast Idaho Selenium Information System. 2007.** Phosphate mine layer. <http://giscenter-ims.isu.edu/SISP/maps/viewer.htm>.
- Southern Appalachian Man and the Biosphere. 1996.** The southern Appalachian assessment terrestrial technical report. Report 5 of 5. Atlanta, GA: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Southern Region. 288 p. <http://samab.org/saa/reports/terrestrial/terrestrial.html>. (Accessed October 27, 2007).
- Southern Methodist University. 2004.** Geothermal map of North America, 2004. <http://www.smu.edu/geothermal/2004NAMap/2004NAMap.htm>. (Accessed October 26, 2007.)
- Stednick, J.D. 1996.** [Monitoring the effects of timber harvest on annual water yield](#). *Journal of Hydrology*. 176: 79–95.
- Steffan-Dewenter, I.; Tschardt, T. 1999.** Effects of habitat isolation on pollinator communities and seed set. *Oecologia*. 121: 432–440. <http://www.springerlink.com/content/69lteml6t74j8wwk/fulltext.pdf>. (Accessed October 27, 2007).
- Stein, B.A. 2002.** States of the union: Ranking America's biodiversity. A NatureServe Report prepared for the Nature Conservancy. Arlington, VA: The Nature Conservancy. 25p. http://www.natureserve.org/Reports/state_ofunions.pdf.
- Stein, B.A.; Kutner, L.S.; Adams, J.S. 2000.** Precious heritage: the status of biodiversity in the United States. A joint project of The Nature Conservancy and the Association for Biodiversity Information. New York: Oxford University Press. 399 p.
- Stein, S.M.; McRoberts, R.E.; Alig, R.J.; Nelson, M.D.; Theobald, D.M.; Eley, M.; Dechter, M.; Carr, M. 2005.** Forests on the edge: housing development on America's private forests. Gen. Tech. Rep. PNW-GTR-636. Portland, OR: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Pacific Northwest Research Station. 16 p. <http://www.treesearch.fs.fed.us/pubs/9841>. (Accessed November 2, 2007).

- Stein, S.M.; Alig, R.J.; White, E.M.; Comas, S.J.; Carr, M.; Eley, M.; Elverum, K.; O'Donnell, M.; Theobald, D.M.; Cordell, K.; Haber, J.; Beauvais, T.W.** 2007. National forests on the edge: development pressures on America's national forests and grasslands. Gen. Tech. Rep. PNW-GTR-728. Portland, OR: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Pacific Northwest Research Station. 28 p. <http://www.treesearch.fs.fed.us/pubs/28858>. (Accessed November 2, 2007).
- Stolen, E.D.** 2003. The effects of vehicle passage on foraging behavior of wading birds. *Waterbirds*. 26(4): 429-436. <http://www.bioone.org/archive/1524-4695/26/4/pdf/i1524-4695-26-4-429.pdf>. (Accessed October 27, 2007).
- Story, M.; Dzomba, T.** 2005. Smoke NEPA guidance: describing air resource impacts from prescribed fire on national forests and grasslands of Montana, Idaho, North Dakota and South Dakota in Regions 1 and 4. Missoula, MT. U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service. 30 p.
- Swanston, D.N.** 1991. Natural processes. In: Meehan, W.R., ed. Influences of forest and rangeland management on salmonid fishes and their habitats. Bethesda, MD: American Fisheries Society: 139-179.
- Swetnam, T.W.** 2000 (August 14). Testimony to committee on resources, subcommittee on forests and forest health, oversight hearing on preventing wildfires through proper management of the National Forest. Albuquerque, NM.
- Tchebakova, N.M.; Rehfeldt, G.E.; Parfenova, E.I.** 2005. Impacts of climate change on the distribution of *Larix* spp. and *Pinus sylvestris* and their climatypes in Siberia. *Mitigating Adaptive Strategies Global Change*. 11: 861-882.
- Theobald, D.M.; Romme, W.H.** 2007. Expansion of the US wildland-urban interface. *Landscape and Urban Planning*. 83 (2007) 340-354. 15 p.
- Thomas, C.D.; Bodsworth, E.J.; Wilson, R.J.; Simmons, A.D.; Davies, Z.G.; Musche, M.; Conradt, L.** 2001. Ecological and evolutionary processes at expanding range margins. *Nature*. 411: 577-581. <http://www.nature.com/nature/journal/v411/n6837/full/411577a0.html>. (Accessed October 27, 2007).
- Thomas, R.B.; Megahan, W.F.** 1998. Peak flow responses to clearcutting and roads in small and large basins, western Cascades, Oregon: a second opinion. *Water Resources Research*. 34(12): 3393-3403. http://www.geo.oregonstate.edu/classes/geo582/week_7_1_forest_harvest_roads_peak_s/thomas_megahan_wrr_98.pdf.
- Tomback, D.F.; Kendall, K.C.** 2001. Biodiversity losses: The Downward spiral. In: Whitebark pine communities: ecology and restoration. Part III, Chapter 12. Whitebark pine communities: Threats and losses. Tomback, D.F.; S.F. Arno; R.E. Keane, Contributing Editors. p. 243-262.
- Torn, M.S.; Fried, J.S.** 1992. Predicting the impacts of global warming on wildland fire. *Climate*. 21(3): 257-274. <http://www.springerlink.com/content/q0261470h43r415q/fulltext.pdf>.
- Trombulak, S.C.; Frissell, C.A.** 2000. Review of ecological effects of roads on terrestrial and aquatic communities. *Conservation Biology*. 14(1): 18-30. <http://www.blackwell-synergy.com/doi/pdf/10.1046/j.1523-1739.2000.99084.x>. (Accessed October 27, 2007).
- Turner, I.M.; Chua, K.S.; Ong, J.S.Y.; Soong, B.C.; Tan, H.T.W.** 1996. A century of plant species loss from isolated fragment of lowland tropical rain forest. *Conservation Biology*. 10: 1229-1244. <http://www.blackwell-synergy.com/doi/pdf/10.1046/j.1523-1739.1996.10041229.x>. (Accessed October 27, 2007).
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service.** 1974. National forest landscape management, vol. 2, ch. 1, the visual mgmt system: recreation, heritage, and wilderness resources. Washington, DC. 45p.

- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 1986.** 1986. ROS book: recreation, heritage, and wilderness resources. Washington, DC.
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 1995.** Inland Native Fish Strategy (INFISH). Decision notice/finding of no significant impact, environmental assessment; interim strategies for managing fish-producing watersheds in eastern Oregon and Washington, Idaho, western Montana, and portions of Nevada.
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 1995a.** Final environmental impact statement for the management of the red-cockaded woodpecker and its habitat on national forests in the Southern Region, vol. II, manage. Bulletin R8-MB 73. Atlanta, GA: Southern Region, Regional Office. 192 p.
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 1996.** Landscape aesthetics: a handbook for scenery management. Washington, DC.
<http://www.urbanforestrysouth.org/Resources/Collections/Collection.2005-01-18.4830>. (Accessed October 26, 2007).
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 1996a.** Assessment of the conservation needs for bull trout. R1-96-71. 32 p.
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 1998.** Caribou National Forest, Dairy Syncline and Manning Creek recommendation letter to BLM (February 23). File code 2820.
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 1999.** Roads analysis: informing decisions about managing the national forest transportation system. Miscellaneous Report FS-643. Washington, DC. 222p.
http://www.fs.fed.us/eng/road_mgt/DOCSroad-analysis.shtml. (Accessed November 2, 2007).
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 1999a.** Heritage – it's about time! a national strategy. Washington, DC: Recreation, Heritage and Wilderness Resource Management.
http://www.fs.fed.us/recreation/programs/heritage/heritage_strategy.shtml (Accessed November 2, 2007).
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA] Forest Service. 1999b.** 1997 RPA Assessment: The United States Forest Resource Current Situation (Review Draft). Washington DC: United States Department of Agriculture, Forest Service. 25 p.
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2000.** Roadless rule final EIS, Forest Service roadless area conservation final EIS, volumes 1, 2, and 3.
<http://roadless.fs.fed.us/documents/feis/>. (Accessed October 26, 2007).
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2000a.** Biological evaluation specialist report for Forest Service roadless area conservation final EIS. Unpublished report. 90 p.
http://roadless.fs.fed.us/documents/feis/specrep/Final_biological_evaluation.PDF (Accessed November 2, 2007).
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2000b.** Final regulatory flexibility analysis for the roadless area conservation rule specialist report for the Forest Service roadless area conservation final EIS. Unpublished report. 58 p.
http://roadless.fs.fed.us/documents/feis/specrep/xfrfa_clearance.pdf. (Accessed November 2, 2007).
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2000c.** Fuel management and fire suppression specialist report for the roadless area conservation rule for the Forest Service roadless area conservation final EIS. Unpublished report . 137 p.
http://roadless.fs.fed.us/documents/feis/specrep/xfire_spec_rpt.pdf. (Accessed November 2, 2007).
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2000d.** Forest management specialist report for the roadless area conservation rule for the Forest Service roadless area conservation final EIS. Unpublished report. 48 p.
http://roadless.fs.fed.us/documents/feis/specrep/xforveg_spec_rpt.pdf. (Accessed November 2, 2007).

- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2000e.** Landscape analysis and biodiversity specialist report for the roadless area conservation rule for the Forest Service roadless area conservation final EIS. Unpublished report . 52 p.
http://roadless.fs.fed.us/documents/feis/specprep/xlandscape_spec_rpt.pdf. (Accessed November 2, 2007).
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2000f.** Minerals and geology specialist report for the roadless area conservation rule for the Forest Service roadless area conservation final EIS. Unpublished report. 21 p.
http://roadless.fs.fed.us/documents/feis/specprep/xmineral_spec_rpt.pdf. (Accessed November 2, 2007).
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2000g.** Physical resources specialist report for the roadless area conservation rule for the Forest Service roadless area conservation final EIS. Unpublished report. 68 p.
http://roadless.fs.fed.us/documents/feis/specprep/xphys_res_spec_rpt.pdf. (Accessed November 2, 2007).
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2000h.** Real estate specialist report for the roadless area conservation rule for the Forest Service roadless area conservation final EIS. 15 p.
http://roadless.fs.fed.us/documents/feis/specprep/real_estate_mgmt.PDF. (Accessed November 2, 2007).
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2000i.** Recreation and special uses specialist report for the roadless area conservation rule for the Forest Service roadless area conservation final EIS. Unpublished report. 35 p.
http://roadless.fs.fed.us/documents/feis/specprep/xrec_spec_spec_rpt.pdf. (Accessed November 2, 2007).
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2000j.** Regulatory impact analysis for the roadless area conservation rule conservation rule specialist report for the Forest Service roadless area conservation final EIS. Unpublished report. 108 p.
http://roadless.fs.fed.us/documents/feis/specprep/xria_spec_rpt.pdf. (Accessed November 2, 2007).
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2000k.** Roads specialist report for the Forest Service roadless area conservation final EIS. Unpublished report.42 p.
http://roadless.fs.fed.us/documents/feis/specprep/Roads_Spec_Report.PDF. (Accessed November 2, 2007).
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2000l.** Scenic quality specialist report for the Forest Service roadless area conservation final EIS. Unpublished report. 15 p.
http://roadless.fs.fed.us/documents/feis/specprep/xscenic_qual_spec_rpt.pdf. (Accessed November 2, 2007).
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2000m.** Socioeconomic specialist report for the Forest Service roadless area conservation final EIS. Unpublished report .142 p.
http://roadless.fs.fed.us/documents/feis/specprep/socioecon_specialist_entire.pdf. (Accessed November 2, 2007).
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2000n.** Terrestrial and aquatic habitats and species specialist report for the Forest Service roadless area conservation final EIS. Unpublished report, 130 p.
http://roadless.fs.fed.us/documents/feis/specprep/xbio_spec_rpt.pdf. (Accessed November 2, 2007).
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2000o.** Wilderness and special designated areas specialist report for the Forest Service roadless area conservation final EIS. Unpublished report, 23 p.
http://roadless.fs.fed.us/documents/feis/specprep/xwild_desig_spec_rpt.pdf. (Accessed November 2, 2007).

- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2000p. Forest Service roadless area conservation final EIS, volumes 1, 2, and 3. Washington Office, Washington, D.C. <http://roadless.fs.fed.us/documents/feis/> (Accessed November 2, 2007)
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2000q. Protecting people and sustaining resources in a fire-adapted ecosystem: a cohesive strategy – the Forest Service management response to the General Accounting Office Report GAO/RCED-99-65. August 2000. Washington, DC. 85 p. http://www.fs.fed.us/publications/2000/cohesive_strategy10132000.pdf. (Accessed November 2, 2007).
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2000r. H. Gucinski and M. Furniss, eds. Forest roads: a synthesis of scientific information. Washington, DC. http://www.fs.fed.us/eng/road_mgt/science.pdf. (Accessed October 26, 2007).
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2000s. Water/Road Interaction Technology Series. San Dimas Technology & Development Center. United States Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Engineering Staff, Washington Office, March 2000. <http://www.stream.fs.fed.us/water-road/w-r-pdf/intro.pdf>.
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2001 (Jan. 12). Special areas; roadless area conservation; final rule. Federal Register. 66 FR 3244, part VI, Department of Agriculture Forest Service, 36 CFR Part 294. http://roadless.fs.fed.us/documents/rule/roadless_fedreg_rule.pdf. (Accessed October 26, 2007).
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2001a. Advance notice of proposed rulemaking, request for comment . National Forest System land and resource management planning; special areas, roadless area conservation. 36 CFR parts 219 and 294. 35918–35920. http://roadless.fs.fed.us/documents/advance_notice.html. (Accessed October 26, 2007).
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2001b. Forest Service energy implementation plan. Unpublished report , 9 p. <http://www.fs.fed.us/geology/fseip.pdf>. (Accessed November 2, 2007).
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2001c. A collaborative approach for reducing wildland fire risks to communities and the environment. 10-year comprehensive strategy (Aug.) Washington, DC: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Washington Office. 21 p. <http://www.forestsandrangelands.gov/plan/documents/7-19-en.pdf>.
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2002. Forest plan monitoring and evaluation report fiscal year 2001. Libby, MT: Kootenai National Forest. http://www.fs.fed.us/r1/kootenai/projects/planning/documents/forest_plan/monitoring/01doc.pdf.
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2003. Final environmental impact statement for the Caribou National Forest revised forest plan. Caribou-Targhee National Forest. p. 3–130. http://www.fs.fed.us/r4/caribou-targhee/projects/caribou_plan/index.shtml. (Accessed October 26, 2007).
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2003a. Biological assessment for the revision of the Boise, Payette, and Sawtooth Land and Resource Management Plans.
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2004 [July 16]. Notice of proposed rulemaking; request for comment: special areas; State petitions for inventoried roadless area management. Federal Register. 69 FR 42636, part II, Department of Agriculture Forest Service, 36 CFR Parts 294. <http://edocket.access.gpo.gov/2004/pdf/04-16191.pdf>.
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2004a. National strategy and implementation plan for invasive species management. 24 p. http://www.fs.fed.us/foresthealth/publications/Invasive_Species.pdf. (Accessed October 26, 2007).
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2004b. Idaho forest health highlights 2004. Ogden, UT. 2004. http://www.fhm.fs.fed.us/fhh/fhh-04/id/id_04.pdf. (Accessed November 2, 2007).

- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2004c. Intermountain Region proposed, endangered, threatened, and sensitive species, known/suspected distribution by forest. Unpublished report on file at: Intermountain Region, Ogden, UT. 23 p.
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2004d. Region 1, sensitive plant list for Idaho. Unpublished report on file at: Northern Region, Missoula, MT. 3 p.
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2004e. National forest visitor use monitoring program national project results January 2000 through September 2003. Washington, DC: Washington Office. 10 p. http://www.fs.fed.us/recreation/programs/nvum/national_report_final_draft.pdf (Accessed November 2, 2007).
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2004f. Lewis and Clark on the Lolo Trail. Clearwater National Forest. 20 p. http://www.fs.fed.us/r1/clearwater/LewisClark/Assets/lolo_trail_corridor.pdf (Accessed November 2, 2007).
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2004g. Record of decision, forest plan amendments for motorized access within the Selkirk and Cabinet-Yaak grizzly bear recovery zones. Idaho Panhandle, Kootenai, and Lolo National Forests 90 p.
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2004h. Wood Biomass for Energy, Forest Products Laboratory, April 2004.
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2005 [May 13]. Final rule and decision memo. Special Areas, State petitions for inventoried roadless area management. Federal Register. 70 FR 25654, part II, Department of Agriculture Forest Service, 36 CFR Parts 294. <http://www.setonresourcecenter.com/register/2005/May/13/25654A.pdf>.
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2005a. Idaho forest health highlights 2005. Ogden, UT. 4p. http://www.fhm.fs.fed.us/fhh/fhh-05/id/id_05.pdf. (Accessed November 2, 2007).
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2005b. 36 CFR Parts 212, 251, 261 and 295 Travel management; designated routes and areas for motor vehicle use; final rule. Federal Register. 70 FR 68264. <http://www.setonresourcecenter.com/register/2005/Nov/09/68264A.pdf>.
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2006. Land areas of the National Forest System. <http://www.fs.fed.us/land/staff/lar/LAR06/lar06index.html>. (Accessed October 26, 2007).
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2006a. Idaho forest health highlights 2006. http://fhm.fs.fed.us/fhh/fhh_06/id/Idaho06.pdf. (Accessed October 26, 2007).
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2006b. FY 2000–2006 road accomplishment report. Unpublished report. Washington D.C.
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2006c. Final conservation strategy for the grizzly bear in the Yellowstone ecosystem. 87 p. Unpublished report. <http://www.fs.fed.us/r1/wildlife/igbc/ConservationStrategy/CS.htm> (Accessed November 2, 2007).
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2006d. Forest plan amendment for grizzly bear habitat conservation for the greater Yellowstone area national forests, executive summary for the final environmental impact statement. 32 p. <http://www.fs.fed.us/r1/wildlife/igbc/Subcommittee/yes/YEamend/EIS/01-executive-summary.pdf> (Accessed November 2, 2007).
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2006e. Danskin land exchange. revised proposed action report, Boise National Forest. Boise, ID: Boise National Forest. 13 p. http://www.fs.fed.us/r4/boise/projects/danskin-camas_proposed-action-report.pdf (Accessed November 2, 2007).
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2006f. Special use data base (SUDs) authorization sorted by State. Unpublished report.

- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA]. 2006g. [December]. Letter from Secretary of Agriculture Mark Rey to Governor Risch, accepting the Petition. 2 p. http://www.fs.fed.us/emc/roadless/risch_response_1222.pdf (Accessed November 2, 2007).
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2007 [April 10]. Roadless area conservation; National Forest System lands in Idaho: notice of intent to prepare an environmental impact statement. Federal Register. 68 FR 17816. http://www.fs.fed.us/emc/roadless/noi_fedreg_idaho_roadless_041007.pdf (Accessed November 2, 2007).
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2007a. Climate change and forest pests. Research and Development Briefing Paper, January 29, 2007. Unpublished report. 2 p. http://www.fs.fed.us/psw/topics/climate_change/pdf/CC_forest_pests_012907.pdf. (Accessed October 27, 2007).
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2007b. Interactions of fire, carbon, atmosphere, and changing climate. Research and development briefing paper, February 8, 2007. Unpublished report. 3 p. http://www.fs.fed.us/psw/topics/climate_change/pdf/CC_fire_carbon_atmo_020807.pdf. (Accessed October 27, 2007).
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2007c. The case for developing an agency-wide integrated response to global change and its effects on forest and range ecosystems. In: Leadership team meeting briefing paper, New Orleans, LA, April 24, 2007: 1-2. Unpublished paper. <http://www.fs.fed.us/rmrs/docs/climate-change/national-briefing-papers.pdf>. (Accessed October 27, 2007).
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2007d. Climate change impacts on U.S. water resources. In: Leadership team meeting briefing paper, New Orleans, LA, April 24, 2007: 11-12. Unpublished paper. <http://www.fs.fed.us/rmrs/docs/climate-change/national-briefing-papers.pdf>. (Accessed October 27, 2007).
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2007e. Opportunities to increase carbon sequestration and reduce emissions for U.S. forest lands. In: Leadership team meeting briefing paper, New Orleans, LA, April 24, 2007: 5-6. Unpublished paper. <http://www.fs.fed.us/rmrs/docs/climate-change/national-briefing-papers.pdf>. (Accessed October 27, 2007).
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2007f. Strategic planning for climate change research and management. In: Leadership team meeting briefing paper, New Orleans, LA, April 24, 2007: 7-8. Unpublished paper. <http://www.fs.fed.us/rmrs/docs/climate-change/national-briefing-papers.pdf>. (Accessed October 27, 2007).
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2007g. Re-framing management strategies in the face of climate change. Leadership team meeting briefing paper, New Orleans, LA., April 24, 2007: 13-14. Unpublished paper. <http://www.fs.fed.us/rmrs/docs/climate-change/national-briefing-papers.pdf>. (Accessed October 27, 2007).
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2007h. Insect and disease risk map: a multi-criteria framework for producing local, regional, and national insect and disease maps. http://www.fs.fed.us/foresthealth/technology/pdfs/threatsconf2006-krist-paper_v2.pdf. (Accessed October 27, 2007).
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2007i. Intermountain Region cut and sold reports, 2002-2006. Unpublished report.
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2007j. Northern Region timber program statistics, 2002-2006. Unpublished report.
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2007k. Infrastructure database. Unpublished report.

- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2007l.** Record of decision, Northern Rockies lynx management direction. Missoula, MT . National Forests in Montana and parts of Idaho, Wyoming, and Utah. 77pp. http://www.fs.fed.us/r1/planning/lynx/reports/rod/ROD_.pdf. (Accessed November 2, 2007).
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2007m.** 36 part 220. National Environmental Policy Act procedures: notice of proposed rule. Federal Register. 72 FR 45998. http://www.fs.fed.us/emc/nepa/nepa_procedures/includes/fr_2007_nepa_procedures.pdf (Accessed November 2, 2007).
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2007n.** 36 Part 219. National Forest System land management planning; proposed rule. Federal Register. 72 FR 48514. http://www.fs.fed.us/emc/nfma/includes/oi_fr_051107.pdf. (Accessed November 2, 2007).
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2007o.** Loss of open space position paper. Washington Office. Unpublished report. <http://www.fs.fed.us/publications/policy-analysis/loss-of-open-space-position-paper.pdf>. (Accessed November 2, 2007).
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2007p.** Recreation facility master planning: action plan. Washington Office. Unpublished report. <http://www.fs.fed.us/recreation/programs/rfa/2300-rsfmp-rev-team-report-05-16-2007.pdf>. (Accessed November 2, 2007).
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2007q.** Grandmother Mountain land exchange, decision notice and finding of no significant impact. October 2007. Coeur d'Alene ID: Idaho Panhandle National Forest. 142 p. http://www.fs.fed.us/ipnf/eco/manage/nepa/sonepa/gmlex/gmle_dn.pdf (Accessed November 2, 2007).
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2007r.** Notice of availability for Roadless Area Conservation; National Forest System Lands in Idaho draft EIS; Federal Register. 72 FR 72708. http://ostseis.anl.gov/documents/docs/EP_A_FR_OSTS.pdf. (Accessed July 30, 2008).
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2007s.** Notice of intent to prepare an environmental impact statement – Roadless Area Conservation; National Forest System Lands in Idaho; and summary of public comment . Prepared by: Jones & Stokes Sacramento, CA, for U.S. Forest Service, Content Analysis Team, Salt Lake City, UT. 26p. http://www.fs.fed.us/emc/roadless/070615_summary.pdf.
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2008.** Natural Resource Information System (NRIS), national corporate database for invasive species. (Accessed June, 2008). <http://www.fs.fed.us/emc/nris/>.
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2008a.** Climate change letter to national leadership team. File Code 1300, February 15 2008.
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA] Forest Service. 2008b** Region 1 and 4 forest health protection and state forestry organizations. Forest Insect and Disease Management Guide. Last Updated 29 Feb. 2008. http://www.fs.fed.us/r1-r4/spf/fhp/mgt_guide/index.htm (Accessed May 2008).
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA] Forest Service 2008c. Region 1 and 4 Forest Health Protection and State Forestry Organizations.** Forest health protection trip reports. 2005-2008 http://www.fs.fed.us/r1-r4/spf/fhp/mgt_guide/index.htm. (Accessed May, 2008).
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2008d.** Final rule, National Environmental Policy Act procedures. 36 CFR Part 220. Federal Register. FR 73 43084. http://www.fs.fed.us/emc/nepa/nepa_procedures/includes/fr_nepa_procedures_2008_07_24.pdf. (Accessed July 30, 2008).
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2008e.** Biological evaluation and specialist report for aquatic and terrestrial habitats and species specialist report for the Roadless Area Conservation, National Forest System Lands in Idaho final EIS. Unpublished report. 168p.
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2008f.** Fuel management and fire

- suppression specialist report for the Roadless Area Conservation, National Forest System lands in Idaho final EIS. Unpublished report. 40p.
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2008g.** Heritage specialist report for the Roadless Area Conservation, National Forest System lands in Idaho final EIS. Unpublished report. 10p.
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2008h.** Minerals specialist report for the Roadless Area Conservation, National Forest System lands in Idaho final EIS. Unpublished report.
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2008i.** Physical Resources Specialist Report, Soil, Water, and Air for the Roadless Area Conservation, National Forest System lands in Idaho final EIS. Unpublished report. 11p.
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2008j.** Recreation specialist report for the Roadless Area Conservation, National Forest System lands in Idaho final EIS. Unpublished report.
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2008k.** Roads specialist report for the Roadless Area Conservation, National Forest System lands in Idaho final EIS. Unpublished report. 41p.
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2008l.** Socioeconomic specialist report for the Roadless Area Conservation, National Forest System lands in Idaho final EIS. Unpublished report. 67p.
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2008m.** TECS Plants Specialist Report for the Roadless Area Conservation, National Forest System Lands in Idaho final EIS. Unpublished report. 26p.
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2008n.** Tribal Specialist Report for the Roadless Area Conservation, National Forest System Lands in Idaho final EIS. Unpublished report. 11p.
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2008o.** Vegetation specialist report for the Roadless Area Conservation, National Forest System lands in Idaho final EIS. Unpublished report. 46p.
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2008p.** Special areas; Roadless Area Conservation; applicability to the national forests in Idaho. Notice of proposed rulemaking; request for comment. Federal Register. 73 FR 1135.
http://roadless.fs.fed.us/documents/idaho_roadless/id_proposed_rule_fr.pdf.
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2008q.** Special areas; Roadless Area Conservation; Applicability to the National Forests in Idaho. Amended notice. Federal Register. 73 FR 2027.
http://roadless.fs.fed.us/documents/idaho_roadless/extension_deis_comment_period.pdf.
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2008r.** Record of decision, Smoky Canyon Mine panels F and G, Authorization for Off-Lease Activities (June).
http://www.blm.gov/pgdata/etc/medialib/blm/id/plans/smoky_canyon_mine.Par.95391.File.dat/FS_SCROD_Panels%20F%20and%20G.pdf.
- USDA, Forest Service. 2008s.** Native Plant Material Policy (Forest Service Manual 2070). Notice of issuance of agency final directive. Federal Register. 73 FR 8265.
http://www.fs.fed.us/wildflowers/nativeplantmaterials/documents/FRNotice_FinalNPM.pdf.
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2008t.** Final rule, National Forest System Land Management Planning. 36 CFR Part 219. Federal Register. 73 FR 21468.
http://www.fs.fed.us/emc/nfma/includes/planning_rule/08_planning_rule.pdf. (Accessed July 30, 2008).

- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service; U.S. Department of Commerce [USDC], National Marine Fisheries Service; U.S. Department of the Interior [USDI], Bureau of Land Management, Fish and Wildlife Service, and National Park Service; U.S. Environmental Protection Agency [EPA]; Forest Ecosystem Management Assessment Team [FEMAT]. 1993. Forest ecosystem management: an ecological, economic, and social assessment. [Chapter V: Aquatic Ecosystem Assessment \(pp. V-1 through V-95\)](#). U.S. Government Printing Office 1993-793-071. Washington, DC.
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service; U.S. Department of the Interior [USDI]. 2000. National fire plan. Managing the impact of wildfire on communities and the environment. September 8, 2000. 17 p. <http://www.forestsandrangelands.gov/NFP/overview.shtml>. (Accessed November 2, 2007).
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service; U.S. Department of the Interior [USDI], Bureau of Land Management; U.S. Department of Commerce [USDC], National Marine Fisheries Service; and U.S. Department of the Interior [USDI], Fish and Wildlife Service. 2000c. National memorandum of agreement (MOA) on Endangered Species Act section 7 programmatic consultations and coordination, August 30, 2000. http://www.fs.fed.us/biology/resources/pubs/tes/MOA-final_000830.rtf.
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA] and U.S. Department of the Interior [USDI]. 2006. A collaborative approach for reducing wildland fire risks to communities and the environment: 10-year strategy implementation plan. 36 p. http://www.forestsandrangelands.gov/plan/documents/10-YearStrategyFinal_Dec2006.pdf.
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service; U.S. Department of the Interior [USDI], Bureau of Land Management. 1995. Decision notice/decision record, finding of no significant impact, and environmental assessment for the interim strategies for managing anadromous fish-producing watersheds in eastern Oregon and Washington, Idaho, and portions of California. (PACFISH). Washington, DC. 206 p.
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service; U.S. Department of the Interior [USDI], Bureau of Land Management. 2000. Interior Columbia basin ecosystem management project supplemental draft environmental impact statement, vol. 1. Portland, OR: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Pacific Northwest Research Station. 92 p. <http://www.icbemp.gov/pdfs/sdeis/Volume1/Volume1.pdf>. (Accessed October 27, 2007).
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service; U.S. Department of the Interior [USDI], Bureau of Land Management. 2000a. Interior Columbia basin final environmental impact statement, December 2000. Vol. 1 pp. 123-164 and Vol. 2 pp. 9-34 Portland, OR: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Pacific Northwest Research Station. <http://www.icbemp.gov/>.
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service; U.S. Department of the Interior [USDI], Bureau of Land Management. 2004. The Healthy Forests Initiative and Healthy Forests Restoration Act, interim field guide. FS-799. 58 p. <http://www.fs.fed.us/projects/hfi/field-guide/>. (Accessed November 2, 2007).
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service; U.S. Department of the Interior [USDI], Bureau of Land Management. 2006 [September 2]. Caribou-Targhee National Forest, ID, WY and UT, Caribou oil and gas leasing EIS notice of intent to prepare an environmental impact statement. Federal Register. 70 FR 52630.
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service; U.S. Department of the Interior [USDI], Bureau of Land Management, Fish and Wildlife Service, National Park Service, the National Association of State Foresters and the National Association of Counties. 2003. Memorandum of understanding for the development of a collaborative fuels treatment program. USFS Agreement #03-MU-11132001-023. Washington, D.C. 5 p. <http://www.forestsandrangelands.gov/resources/documents/9-21-en.pdf>. (Accessed November 2, 2007).

Deleted: U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service; U.S. Department of the Interior [USDI], Bureau of Land Management. 1999. Interior Columbia basin ecosystem management project: scientific assessment. September 1999. <http://www.fs.fed.us/pnw/publications/icbemp.shtml>. (Accessed July 30, 2008).¶

- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service; U.S. Department of the Interior [USDI], Fish and Wildlife Service. 2005. [Sept 6]. Candidate conservation agreement for *Castilleja christii*, Christ's Indian paintbrush. U.S. Department of Agriculture, Sawtooth National Forest, and U.S. Department of the Interior, Fish and Wildlife Service, Snake River Office. 63 p. <http://www.fws.gov/idaho/landowners/Castilleja%20Final%20CCA.pdf>.
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service; U.S. Department of the Interior [USDI], Fish and Wildlife Service. 2006. Occupied mapped lynx habitat amendment to the Canada lynx conservation agreement. Missoula, MT. Unpublished. 5 p.
- U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Natural Resources Conservation Service. U.S. general soil map (STATSGO2) for Idaho. Prepared by soil survey staff. <http://soildatamart.nrcs.usda.gov> (accessed April 22, 2008).
- U.S. Department of Commerce [USDC], National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration [NOAA]. 1991 [November 20]. Endangered and threatened species: endangered status for Snake River sockeye salmon. Federal Register. 56 FR 58619.
- U.S. Department of Commerce [USDC], National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration [NOAA]. 1992a [April 22]. 50 CFR Parts 223 and 224 Endangered and threatened species; designation critical habitat; Snake River sockeye salmon, Snake River spring/summer Chinook salmon, and Snake River fall Chinook salmon. Federal Register. 57 FR 14653.
- U.S. Department of Commerce [USDC], National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration [NOAA], National Marine Fisheries Service. 1992b. [June 3] Endangered and threatened species: threatened status for Snake River spring/summer Chinook salmon, threatened status for Snake River fall Chinook salmon, correction. Federal Register. 57 FR 23458.
- U.S. Department of Commerce [USDC], National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA), National Marine Fisheries Service. 1993 (December 28). Designated critical habitat: Snake River sockeye salmon, snake river spring/summer Chinook salmon, and Snake River fall Chinook salmon. Federal Register. 58 FR 68543. <http://www.nmfs.noaa.gov/pr/pdfs/fr/fr58-68543.pdf>.
- U.S. Department of Commerce [USDC], National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA), National Marine Fisheries Service. 1997 (August 18). Endangered and threatened species: final rule and listing of several evolutionary significant units (ESUs) of west coast steelhead. Federal Register. 62 FR 43937. <http://www.epa.gov/fedrgstr/EPA-SPECIES/1998/June/Day-17/e16110.htm>.
- U.S. Department of Commerce [USDC], National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA), National Marine Fisheries Service. 1999. [October 25] Designated critical habitat: revision of critical habitat for Snake River spring/summer Chinook salmon. Federal Register. 64 FR 57399. http://frwebgate.access.gpo.gov/cgi-bin/getdoc.cgi?dbname=1999_register&docid=99-27585-filed.pdf.
- U.S. Department of Commerce [USDC], National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration [NOAA], National Marine Fisheries Service. 2002. [January 17]. Magnuson-Steven Act Provisions; Essential fish Habitat (EFH). Final Rule. Federal Register, 67 FR 2343.
- U.S. Department of Commerce [USDC], National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration [NOAA]. 2003. Biological opinion for the southwest Idaho national forests (Boise, Payette and Sawtooth) revised forest plans.
- U.S. Department of Commerce [USDC], National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration [NOAA]. 2005 (December 22). Salmon and steelhead recovery planning in the Snake River basin early draft plan, chapters for public comment. <http://www.idahosalmonrecovery.net/index.html>.
- Deleted: U.S. Department of Commerce [USDC], National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration [NOAA]. 1992. [December 2]. 50 CFR Parts 227. Endangered and threatened species; threatened status for Snake River spring/summer Chinook salmon, and Snake River fall Chinook salmon. Federal Register. 57 FR 57051.¶

- U.S. Department of Commerce [USDC], National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration [NOAA]. 2005a (June 28). Endangered and threatened species: final listing determinations for 16 ESUs of west coast salmon, and final 4(d) protective regulations for threatened salmonid ESUs. Federal Register. 70 FR 37160.
- U.S. Department of Commerce [USDC], National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration [NOAA]. 2005b [September 2]. Endangered and threatened species: designation of critical habitat for 12 evolutionary significant units of west coast salmon and steelhead in Washington, Oregon and Idaho. Federal Register. 70 FR 52630.
- U.S. Department of Commerce [USDC], National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration [NOAA]. 2006 (January 5). 50 CFR Parts 223 and 224 Endangered and threatened species: final listing determinations for 10 distinct population segments of west coast steelhead; final rule. Federal Register. 71 FR 834.
- U.S. Department of Energy. 1986 Wind Energy Resource Atlas of the United States, October 1986. http://www.nrel.gov/wind/resource_assessment.html.
- U.S. Department of Energy; U.S. Department of the Interior [USDI], Bureau of Land Management; U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2005 [September 28]. Notice of intent to prepare a programmatic environmental impact statement; amend relevant agency land use plans, conduct public scoping meetings, and notice of floodplain and wetlands involvement. Federal Register. 70 FR 56647. <http://corridoreis.anl.gov/documents/index.cfm>. (Accessed October 27, 2007).
- U.S. Department of the Interior [USDI], Bureau of Land Management. 2007. LR2000 database; June 2007.
- U.S. Department of the Interior [USDI], Bureau of Land Management. 2008. Draft Programmatic environmental impact statement for geothermal leasing in the western United States, Executive Summary, May 2008. 10 p. http://www.blm.gov/wo/st/en/prog/energy/geothermal/geothermal_nationwide.html.
- U.S. Department of the Interior [USDI], Bureau of Land Management. 2008a. Record of decision, environmental impact statement, Smoky Canyon Mines panel F & G [June 6, 2008]. 70p. http://www.blm.gov/pgdata/etc/medialib/blm/id/plans/smoky_canyon_mine.Par.85134.File.dat/BLM_SCROD_Panels%20F%20and%20G.pdf.
- U.S. Department of the Interior [USDI], Bureau of Land Management, Fish and Wildlife Service, Bureau of Indian Affairs, and National Park Service; U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2006. Protecting people and natural resources: a cohesive fuels treatment strategy. http://www.forestsandrangelands.gov/resources/documents/CFTS_03-03-06.pdf. (Accessed October 27, 2007).
- U.S. Department of the Interior [USDI], Bureau of Land Management; U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2007. Smoky Canyon mine, panels F&G, final EIS http://www.fs.fed.us/r4/caribou-targhee/phosphate/smoky_canyon_mine_feis_index.shtml. (Accessed June 21, 2008).
- U.S. Department of the Interior [USDI], Bureau of Land Management; U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2007a. Notice of intent to prepare a programmatic environmental impact statement for leasing of geothermal resources. Federal Register. 72 FR 113.

- U.S. Department of the Interior [USDI], Bureau of Land Management; U.S. Department of Agriculture [USDA], Forest Service. 2008. Notice of availability of the draft programmatic environmental impact statement for leasing of geothermal resources in 11 western states and Alaska and notice of public hearings. Federal Register. 73 FR 33802.
<http://edocket.access.gpo.gov/2008/pdf/E8-13365.pdf>.
- U.S. Department of the Interior [USDI], Fish and Wildlife Service. Grizzly bear recovery, Bitterroot. Mountain-Prairie Region endangered species program.
<http://www.fws.gov/mountain-prairie/species/mammals/grizzly/bitterroot.htm>. (Accessed July 30, 2008).
- U.S. Department of the Interior [USDI], Fish and Wildlife Service. 1979. Determination that *Mirabilis macfarlanei* is an endangered species. Federal Register. 44 FR 61912.
http://ecos.fws.gov/docs/federal_register/fr344.pdf.
- U.S. Department of the Interior [USDI], Fish and Wildlife Service. 1990. Recovery plan for the Florida scrub jay, southeast region, Atlanta, GA. 23 p.
http://ecos.fws.gov/docs/recovery_plan/900509.pdf. (Accessed November 2, 2007).
- U.S. Department of the Interior [USDI], Fish and Wildlife Service. 1992 [January 3]. 50 CFR Part 17. Endangered and threatened wildlife and plants; listing of the Snake River sockeye salmon as endangered. Federal Register. 57 FR 212.
http://ecos.fws.gov/docs/federal_register/fr1995.pdf. (Accessed November 2, 2007).
- U.S. Department of the Interior [USDI], Fish and Wildlife Service. 1992a. Endangered and threatened wildlife and plants; final rule to list the plant *Spiranthes diluvialis* (Ute ladies' tresses) as a threatened species. Federal Register. 57 FR 2048.
http://ecos.fws.gov/docs/federal_register/fr2009.pdf.
- U.S. Department of the Interior [USDI], Fish and Wildlife Service. 1993. Recovery plan for woodland caribou in the Selkirk Mountains. Portland, OR. 71 p.
http://ecos.fws.gov/docs/recovery_plan/940304.pdf
- U.S. Department of the Interior [USDI], Fish and Wildlife Service. 1993a. Grizzly bear recovery plan. Missoula, MT. 181p.
http://www.fws.gov/mountain-prairie/species/mammals/grizzly/Grizzly_bear_recovery_plan.pdf.
- U.S. Department of the Interior [USDI], Fish and Wildlife Service. 1994. 50 CFR Part 17 Endangered and threatened wildlife and plants; determination of threatened status for the Kootenai River population of white sturgeon. Federal Register. 59 FR 45989.
http://ecos.fws.gov/docs/federal_register/fr2678.pdf (Accessed November 2, 2007).
- U.S. Department of the Interior [USDI], Fish and Wildlife Service. 1994a. Final rule: endangered and threatened wildlife and plants; the plant, water howellia (*Howellia aquatilis*), determined to be a threatened species. Federal Register. 59 FR 35860.
<http://www.cdpr.ca.gov/docs/endspec/estext/fr071494.txt>.
- U.S. Department of the Interior [USDI], Fish and Wildlife Service. 1996. Final rule. endangered and threatened wildlife and plants; reclassification of *Mirabilis macfarlanei* (MacFarlane's four-o'clock) from endangered to threatened status. Federal Register. 62 FR 10693.
<http://www.fws.gov/Endangered/pdfs/FR/f960315.pdf>.
- U.S. Department of the Interior [USDI], Fish and Wildlife Service. 1998. 50 CFR Part 17 Endangered and threatened wildlife and plants; determination of threatened status for the Klamath River and Columbia River distinct population segments of bull trout. Federal Register. 63 FR 31647.
http://ecos.fws.gov/docs/federal_register/fr3264.pdf. (Accessed November 2, 2007).

Deleted: ¶

U.S. Department of the Interior [USDI], Fish and Wildlife Service. 1998a [July 8]. Proposal to list the contiguous United States distinct population segment of the Canada lynx; proposed rule. Federal Register: 63 FR 36993.

http://ecos.fws.gov/docs/federal_register/f3279.pdf. (Accessed October 27, 2007).

U.S. Department of the Interior [USDI], Fish and Wildlife Service. 1999 (November 1). Endangered and threatened wildlife and plants; determination of threatened status for bull trout in the coterminous United States; final rule. Federal Register. 64 FR 58910.

<http://www.epa.gov/fedrgstr/EPA-SPECIES/1999/November/Day-01/e28295.htm>.

U.S. Department of the Interior [USDI], Fish and Wildlife Service. 2000. Revised recovery plan for MacFarlane's four-'clock (*Mirabilis rmacfarlanei*). Portland, OR: U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service. 46 p.

http://ecos.fws.gov/docs/recovery_plan/000630.pdf.

U.S. Department of the Interior [USDI], Fish and Wildlife Service. 2001. [September 6] 50 CFR Part 17 Endangered and threatened wildlife and plants; final designation of critical habitat for the Kootenai River population of the white sturgeon. Federal Register. 66 FR 46548.

<http://www.fws.gov/policy/library/01fr46548.html>.

U.S. Department of the Interior [USDI], Fish and Wildlife Service. 2001a. Endangered and threatened wildlife and plants; final rule to list *Silene spaldingii* (Spalding's catchfly) as threatened. Federal Register. 66 FR 51598.

U.S. Department of the Interior [USDI], Fish and Wildlife Service. 2002a. Endangered and threatened wildlife and plants; listing the plant *Lepidium papilliferum* (slickspot peppergrass) as endangered. Federal Register. 67 FR 46441.

<http://www.fws.gov/policy/library/02fr46441.html>.

U.S. Department of the Interior [USDI], Fish and Wildlife Service. 2003. Biological opinion for the southwest Idaho national forests (Boise, Payette and Sawtooth) revised forest plans.

U.S. Department of the Interior [USDI], Fish and Wildlife Service. 2003a. Recovery plan for the northern Idaho ground squirrel (*Spermophilus brunneus brunneus*). Portland, OR. 68 p.

<http://www.fws.gov/pacific/ecoservices/Endangered/recovery/documents/NorthernIdahoGroundSquirrelFinalRecoveryPlan.pdf>.

U.S. Department of the Interior [USDI], Fish and Wildlife Service. 2003c. Endangered and threatened wildlife and plants; listing the plant *Lepidium papilliferum* (slickspot peppergrass). proposed rule; 6-month extension of the deadline for final determination and reopening of comment period. Federal Register. 67 FR 46441.

<http://www.epa.gov/EPA-SPECIES/2003/July/Day-18/e18402.htm>.

U.S. Department of the Interior [USDI], Fish and Wildlife Service. 2003d. Endangered wildlife and plants; candidate conservation agreement and best available information for slickspot peppergrass (*Lepidium papilliferum*). Notice of document availability for review and public comment. Federal Register. 68 FR 61821.

<http://www.epa.gov/EPA-SPECIES/2003/October/Day-30/e27319.htm>.

U.S. Department of the Interior [USDI], Fish and Wildlife Service. 2004. Proposed rule; withdrawal. Endangered and threatened wildlife and plants; withdrawal of proposed rule to list *Lepidium papilliferum* (slickspot peppergrass) as endangered. Federal Register. 69 FR 3094.

<http://www.fws.gov/policy/library/04-1295.pdf>.

U.S. Department of the Interior [USDI], Fish and Wildlife Service. 2005 [September 26]. 50 CFR Part 17 Endangered and threatened wildlife and plants; critical habitat designation for the Klamath River and Columbia River distinct population segments of bull trout. Federal Register. 70 FR 56212.

Deleted: U.S. Department of the Interior [USDI], Fish and Wildlife Service. 2002. Magnuson-Stevens Act provisions; essential fish habitat (EFH). Federal Register. 67 FR 2343. <http://www.fakr.noaa.gov/frules/EFHFR.PDF>.

- U.S. Department of the Interior [USDI], Fish and Wildlife Service. 2006. 50 CFR Part 17 Endangered and threatened wildlife and plants; critical habitat designation for the Kootenai River population of white sturgeon. Federal Register. 71 FR 6383. http://ecos.fws.gov/docs/federal_register/fr3742.pdf. (Accessed November 2, 2007).
- U.S. Department of the Interior [USDI], Fish and Wildlife Service. 2006a. 50 CFR Part 17 Endangered and threatened wildlife and plants; 12-month finding for a petition to list the Yellowstone cutthroat trout as threatened. Federal Register. 71 FR 8818. <http://www.fws.gov/policy/library/06-1539.pdf>. (Accessed November 2, 2007).
- U.S. Department of the Interior [USDI], Fish and Wildlife Service. 2007. Endangered and threatened wildlife and plants; review of native species that are candidates for listing as endangered or threatened; annual notice of findings on resubmitted petitions; annual description of progress on listing actions; proposed rule. Federal Register. 72 FR 69034. <http://www.fws.gov/endangered/pdfs/CNOR/CNOR12-06-07.pdf>.
- U.S. Department of the Interior [USDI], Fish and Wildlife Service. 2007a. Biological opinion for the lower effect habitat conservation plan. Portland, OR. 27 p.
- U.S. Department of the Interior [USDI], Fish and Wildlife Service. 2007b. Proposed rule; withdrawal. Endangered and threatened wildlife and plants; withdrawal of proposed rule to list *Lepidium papilliferum* (slickspot peppergrass). Federal Register. 72 FR 1672. http://bulk.resource.org/gpo.gov/register/2007/2007_01622.pdf.
- U.S. Department of the Interior [USDI], Fish and Wildlife Service. 2008. [July 9] 50 CFR Part 17 Endangered and threatened wildlife and plants; critical habitat revised designation for the Kootenai River population of white sturgeon (*Acipenser transmontanus*). Federal Register. 73 FR 39506. <http://www.fws.gov/policy/library/E8-15134.html>.
- U.S. Department of the Interior [USDI], Fish and Wildlife Service. 2008a. Endangered and threatened wildlife and plants; final rule designating the northern Rocky Mountain population of gray wolf as a distinct population segment and removing this distinct population segment from the federal list of endangered and threatened wildlife; final rule. Federal Register. 73 FR 10513. <http://www.fws.gov/policy/library/08-798.html>.
- U.S. Department of the Interior [USDI], Fish and Wildlife Service. 2008c. Semi-annual species list update addendum. File Code 108.0000, species list 14420-2008-SL-0449. Boise, ID: Snake River Office.
- U.S. Department of the Interior [USDI], Geological Survey. 1978. Indian land areas judicially established. USGS map. Final report, prepared for the Indian Claims Commission. http://rmmcweb.cr.usgs.gov/outreach/map_catalog/images/culture/indian_land_judicial_areas_11x15.pdf.
- U.S. Department of the Interior [USDI], Geological Survey. 1996. 1995 national assessment of United States oil and gas resources. Digital Data Series DDS-30, DDS-35, DDS-36. <http://www.mms.gov/omm/pacific/offshore/na/na95ocsreport.htm>. (Accessed October 27, 2007).
- U.S. Department of the Interior [USDI], Geological Survey. 2002. Western phosphate field, U.S.A.: science in support of land management. Fact sheet FS-100-02. Melno Park, CA. U.S. Geological Survey 2p. <http://pubs.usgs.gov/fs/fs-100-02/FS-100-02-508.pdf>. (Accessed November 2, 2007).
- U.S. Department of the Interior [USDI], Geological Survey. 2006 [September]. The national map LANDFIRE: LANDFIRE rapid assessment fire regimes layer. <http://landfire.cr.usgs.gov/viewer/>. (Accessed October 27, 2007).
- U.S. Department of the Interior [USDI], Geological Survey. 2008 (January). Mineral commodity summaries. http://minerals.usgs.gov/minerals/pubs/commodity/phosphate_rock/mcs-2008-phosp.pdf. (Accessed June 21, 2008).

- U.S. Department of the Interior [USDI], Geological Survey and Bureau of Land Management. 2002. Environmental assessment for leasing of geothermal resources managed by the Bureau of Land Management Carson City Field Office. EA-NV-030-02-021. http://www.nv.blm.gov/carson/Planning/Env_Coord/Geothermal/documents/Final_EA_Geothermal_Leasing.pdf. (Accessed October 27, 2007).
- U.S. Department of the Interior [USDI], Minerals Management Service. 2007. Minerals revenue management. States and offshore regions, fiscal year 2007 (Accounting Year). http://www.mrm.mms.gov/MRMWebStats/StateAndOffshoreRegions.aspx?state=ID&y_eartype=FY&year=2007&dateType=AY.
- U.S. Environmental Protection Agency [EPA]. 1998. Ground water rule: ground water microbial occurrence studies. Washington, DC: Office of Ground Water and Drinking Water. <http://www.epa.gov/OGWDW/standard/occur.html>. (Accessed October 27, 2007).
- U.S. Environmental Protection Agency [EPA]. 2008. Consumer Fact sheet on selenium. Office of Ground Water and Drinking Water Web Resources. http://www.epa.gov/ogwdw/contaminants/dw_contamfs/selenium.html. (Accessed July 21, 2008).
- Van Kirk, R.W.; Hill, S.L. 2006. Modeling predicts trout population response to selenium. Unpublished report on file at: Greater Yellowstone Coalition, 162 N. Woodruff Ave., Idaho Falls, ID 83401. http://www.greateryellowstone.org/media/pdf/van-kirk_selenium_report.pdf. (Accessed October 27, 2007).
- Van Wagtendonk, J.W. 1996. Use of a deterministic fire growth model to test fuel treatments: In: Sierra Nevada ecosystem project, final report to Congress. vol. II, chapter 43. Davis, CA: University of California, Centers for Water and Wildland Resources: 1155-1165. http://www.werc.usgs.gov/yosemite/vii_c43.pdf.
- Varley, J.D. and R.E. Gresswell. 1988. Ecology, status, and management of the Yellowstone cutthroat trout. In: Status and management of interior stocks of cutthroat trout. American Fisheries Society Symposium 4 [R.E. Gresswell ed.]. 4:13-24.
- Wakkinen, W.,R. and W.F. Kasworm. 2004. Demographics and population trends of grizzly bears in the Cabinet-Yaak and Selkirk Ecosystems of British Columbia, Idaho, Montana, and Washington. *Ursus*. 15(1): 65-75. <http://www.bioone.org/archive/1537-6176/15/1/pdf/i1537-6176-15-1-65.pdf>
- Waller, J.S.; Servheen, C. 2005. Effects of transportation infrastructure on grizzly bears in northwestern Montana. *Journal of Wildlife Management*. 69(3): 985-1000. <http://www.bioone.org/archive/0022-541X/69/3/pdf/i0022-541X-69-3-985.pdf>. (Accessed October 27, 2007).
- Walther, G.R.; Post, E.; Convey, P.; Menzel, A.; Parmesan, C.; Beebee, T.J.C.; Fromentin, J.M.; Hoegh-Guldberg, O.H.; Bairlein, F. 2002. Ecological responses to recent climate change. *Nature*. 416: 389-395. <http://www.nature.com/nature/journal/v416/n6879/full/416389a.html>. (Accessed October 27, 2007).
- Weatherspoon, C. P. 2000. A proposed long-term national study of the consequences of fire and fire surrogate treatments. In: Neuenschwander, L.F.; Ryan, K.C., tech eds. Proceedings from the joint fire science conference and workshop: crossing the millennium: integrating spatial, technologies and ecological principles for a new age in fire management: 117-126. <http://www.fs.fed.us/ffs/docs/studyplans2001/sequoia2001.pdf>.
- Weisbrod, B. 1964. Collective-consumption services of individual consumption goods. *Quarterly Journal of Economics*. 78: 471-477. <http://www.jstor.org/view/00335533/di951777/95p0189j/0>. (Accessed October 27, 2007).
- Welsh, T.L. 1991. Stanley Basin sockeye salmon lakes, upper Salmon River drainage, Idaho: fish stocking history; fish eradication projects; present status of the kokanee salmon stocks. Unpublished report. Available at: Aquaculture Institute, University of Idaho, Moscow, ID. 83843.

- Wakkinnen, W.; Clark, R.; DeGroot, L. 2008.** 2008 caribou census: South Selkirk Mountains – draft. 8 p.
- Wemple, B.C.; Jones, J.A.; Grant, G.E. 1996.** Channel network extension by logging roads in two basins, western Cascades, Oregon. *Water Resources Bulletin*. 32(6): 1195–1207. <http://www.humboldt.edu/~storage/pdfmii/Batch%203/channel.pdf>. (Accessed October 27, 2007).
- Wesolowski, T.; Czeszczewik, D.; Rowinski, P. 2005.** Effects of forest management on three-toed woodpecker *Picoides tridactylus* distribution in the Bialowieza Forest (NE Poland): conservation implications. *Acta Ornithologica*. 40(1): 53–60.
- Westerling, A.L.; Hidalgo, H.G.; Cayan, D.R.; Swetnam, T.W. 2006.** Warming and earlier spring increases western U.S. forest wildfire activity. *Science*. 313 (5789): 940. <http://www.sciencemag.org/cgi/content/full/313/5789/940>. (Accessed October 27, 2007).
- Wiens, J.D.; Noon, B.R.; Reynolds, R.T. 2006.** Post-fledging survival of northern goshawks: the importance of prey abundance, weather, and dispersal. *Ecological Applications*. 16(1): 406–418. http://www.fs.fed.us/rm/pubs_other/rmrs_2006_wiens_j001.pdf. (Accessed October 27, 2007).
- Wilcock, C.C.; Neiland, R. 2002.** Pollination failure in plants: why it happens and when it matters. *Trends in Plant Science*. 7: 270–277. http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/sites/entrez?cmd=Retrieve&db=PubMed&list_uids=12049924&dopt=Abstract. (Accessed October 27, 2007).
- Wilmer, B.; Aplet, G.H. 2005.** Targeting the community fire planning zone, mapping matters. Washington, D.C.: The Wilderness Society. <http://www.wilderness.org/Library/Documents/upload/TargetingCFPZ.pdf>.
- Wilson, A.G. Jr.; Wilson, E.M.; Groves, C.R.; Wallace, R.L. 1997.** U. S. distribution of the Coeur d'Alene salamander (*Plethodon idahoensis* Slater and Slipp). *Great Basin Naturalist*. 5794:359–362.
- Wisdom, M.J.; Holthausen, R.S.; Wales, B.K.; Hargis, C.D.; Saab, V.A.; Lee, D.C.; Hann, W.J.; Rich, T.D.; Rowland, M.M.; Murphy, W.J.; Eames, M.R. 2000.** Source habitats for terrestrial vertebrates of focus in the interior Columbia basin: broad-scale trends and management implications. Gen. Tech. Rep. PNW-GTR-485. 3 vols. Portland, OR: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Pacific Northwest Research Station. <http://www.fs.fed.us/pnw/pubs/gtr485/>. (Accessed October 27, 2007).
- Wolmack, K. 2008. [August 5].** Personal communication. U.S. Department of Interior, Fish and Wildlife Service.
- Wood, D. B. 1982.** Fuel management's potential for reducing frequency of large fires in the northern Rockies. *Journal of Forestry*. 80: 105–107.
- Woodbury, P.B.; Smith, J.E.; Health, L.S. 2007.** Carbon sequestration in the U.S. forest sector from 1990 to 2010. *Forest Ecology and Management*. 241: 14–27. http://nrs.fs.fed.us/pubs/jrnl/2007/nrs_2007_woodbury_001.pdf. (Accessed October 27, 2007).

